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TERRY GROVE (Chairman): Good afternoon. To start with, I
would like to share with you the fact that there is no P.A. system.
The microphones in front of us are for taping the proceedings of the
entire afternoon. It is our intention that whatever is said at these
hearings will be taped and transcribed, so that it will be part of the
record for the Hunger Commission. The two women at my right, your
left, are from the Office of Legislative Services, the government of
New Jersey. They are here to do the taping.

When you come forward to give your testimony, please be
seated at the table. Do not stand up. Please make sure that you speak
in such a way that the microphone can pick up your voice. Speak loudly
enough so that we and the others in the room can hear, since we are not
using a P.A. system. Okay?

My name is Terry Grove. I am on the New Jersey Commission on
Hunger; I am the Chairman of the public hearings part of the Hunger
Commission. This is the third of eight hearings we will be conducting
acraoss the State of New Jersey, in order to gather information on
poverty in the State so that the Commission can more adequately do its
work.

There are three of us here from the Commission today. There
may be others who will come in later, as the day progresses. As they
do, I will introduce them to you, and they will join us here up front "’
and become part of the proceedings. In fact, as I speak, here comes
another member.

The purpose of these hearings 1is to gather firsthand
information for the Hunger Commission, so we are not operating in a
vacuum of just some 26 people's minds, without really having the input
from the people who are working with or who are affected by the nunger
and poverty in the State of New Jersey.

The way we would like to handle the hearing is, if you have
called us, we have your name on our witness list. We will grant you 10
minutes to give us your testimony, and we will then take a five-minute
period to speak with you. If there are questions from your testimony

which we need clarified, we will then ask those questions.



This is not a functioning body in the sense that if you have
a problem and you are coming to us for a solution, you're coming to the
wrong place. We are here strictly to listen and to take information.
If you have a problem you wish to share with us, we will hear it, but
please do not expect answers or solutions from us to questions or
problems you may have. Ultimately, I hope the Commission will be able
to address all of those questions and problems, but we cannot do that
today as a hearing body.

As 1 said, my name is Terry LGrove. I work with an
organization called Church World Service -- CROP -- and that puts me on
the Commission by virtue of my position there. To my right is Jon
Barton. Jonathan Barton represents the New Jersey Council of
Churches. He is also on the staff of Church World Service. To my left
is Mr. William Stubbs, who is the Director of the Division of Community
Resources, New Jersey Department of Community Affairs. He is here to
represent the government's side -- the State's side -- of those people
who are on the Hunger Commission. Une over is Mr. Joseph fFord. Joe is
from the Bread for the World organization, and also serves on the
private agency side of this Commission.

We are glad to be here. We are glad for your presence here
as well. Having started a little late, let's just move right along.
As a matter of course, when you are giving testimony, will you please
give us your name, spell your name carefully for the record, and then
give the name of the organization you represent and the title you hold
in that organization. If you are not with any organization, simply
give your name, spell it, and tell us that you are here individually.

The young lady who has just joined us is Donna Ross. Donna
is also a member of the Hunger Commission. She works in Newark with
the Head Start Program. 0Donna, we're glad you're here.

MS. RUOSS: I'm glad I was able to make it.

MR. GROVE: The first person to give testimony today is Mr.
Wolfgang Herz-Lane. Wolfgang, will you please come forward and begin.
WOLFGANG D. HERZ-LANE: Good afternoon. My name 1is wWolfgang v.
Herz-Lane. I live on 25th Street in Camden, and 1 am the Executive

Director of the Good Samaritan Center at 5245 Market Street here in
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Camden. The Good Samaritan Center is a private, nonprofit organization
that provides emergency food and clothing to many struggling families
in Camden County and beyond.

From modest beginnings as a small church-sponsored food
pantry 11 years ago, the Good Samaritan Center has grown to become the
largest emergency food provider in the City of Camden. In 1984, the
Center provided groceries to 10,474 hungry persons in 3,974 family
units. This was the equivalent of 126,212 meals. The value of the
food we gave out last year was more than $65,000, at an average cost of
$.52 per meal.

Now, that sounds like a lot of food, but it has to go a long
way to help many hungry people survive. Just to give you an idea of
how little folks are expected to live on, I have brought with me a bag
of groceries such as would go to single persons referred to our
agency. The food you see in front of you is calculated to last a
single person for four days. Its value is below $10.00. Our emergency
food services at the Good Samaritan Center have increased dramatically
over the past few years. The number of persons receiving food from the
Good Samaritan Center skyrocketed from 4,300 in 1981 to the more than
10,000 last year, which I already mentioned. Just from 1983 to 1984,
the number of meals we provided increased by 25%.

We wish it were otherwise. We wish we could report a
decrease in our feeding efforts, because that would be an indication
that things are getting better. In spite of the growing need, we have
not given up on our dream that someday places like the Good Samaritan
Center will not be needed because all people will have decent housing,
sufficient employment, and enough to live on. As Dr. Martin Luther
King, Jr. once said: "We have the audacity to believe that someday
people everywhere can have three meals a day." Clearly, that day has
not yet arrived in the City of Camden.

OQur increased services reflect the growing needs of a more
and more desperate community. Welcome to Camden. Welcome to a City
that is suffering. Welcome to a (City that is probably affected more
than most cities by Mr. Reagan's insistence that society should not

care for its weakest members, that military might should come before



human needs. Welcome to Camden, a City that by anyone's standard is a
poor City. Approximately 85,000 people live in Camden City, a loss of
17.2% in the last decade -- 1970 through 1980. Last year, Camden
surpassed Newark as the poorest city in the State of New Jersey. We
now rank below Newark, Atlantic City, Trenton, Paterson, and Jersey
City. Fifty-two percent of our residents depend on some kind of a
public assistance program, such as Aid to Families with Dependent
Children, General Assistance, Food Stamps, and the like. According to
the 1980 census, the median income for a family of four was only
$10,000 a year, and the per capita income in 1983 was $3,90U, the
lowest in the State of New Jersey. Only 117 of the City's 33,000
households had a combined annual income of $50,000 or more. Welcome to
Camden.

Our City has also been declared a Medically Underserved Area,
a so-called Federal MUA, with numerous health problems. Malnutrition,
adolescent pregnancy, infant mortélity, cancer, and heart disease rates
are at higher levels than for the State or the nation.

Unemployment, officially at 21% as of May, 1984, well exceeds
35% when those who have given up looking for work or those who are
underemployed are counted in.

The City government, in what appears to be a conservative
estimate, lists 2U% of all properties as vacant. Many of them are
abandoned shells, and hardly a block remains in the City without a
boarded up or burnt-out building.

Camden residents, dependent as they are for tneir livelihoods
on public assistance programs, have been especially hard hit by the
Federal government's budget-cutting measures. They also suffer
disproportionately from high unemployment, unavailability of loans
because of high interest rates, red-lining and low credit ratings, and
the lingering effects of the 1982 recession. Welcome to Camden.

There is hunger in this City. There is hunger in America.
Anyone who tries to tell you otherwise, just hasn't looked. Defining
the problem and assessing its extent, however, is not enough. We don't
need yet another needs assessment. We don't need yet another study.

It is our hope that this Commission will go beyond such an assessment



and such a study. We need some solutions, and we need them quickly.
Obviously, emergency feeding programs are one answer to hunger. Places
like the Good Samaritan Center need more and better resources, more and
better funding to continue their much needed emergency services.

Make no mistake, though: Feeding hungry people is a
Band-Aid, at best. No one knows that better‘than those of us who are
involved in feeding the hungry. Feeding hungry people is a temporary
solution which addresses the symptoms of a much larger social problem.
If we are really serious about eliminating hunger, we need to look at
the root causes as well. As we give out the much needed Band-Aids in
the form of emergency food, we also need to fight the causes and get
away from treating the symptoms.

Let me tell you a story that can make the point much better
than I ever could. This story takes place in a little village that is
situated on the banks of a river, Life is good in this village.
People know each other; people are employed. One night, one of the
villagers takes a walk along the river's banks and finds a baby
floating down the river. Our villager, who is a caring person, of
course, takes off his shoes, jumps into the water, and rescues the
baby.

The next day, another villager finds two babies floatinyg down
the river. Again, he jumps in and rescues the drowning babies. But
the day after that, four babies are found; then eight; tnen 16; and
then more and more. Before they knew it, the villagers were confronted
with a situation where an increasing number of babies were floating
down the river drowning in the swift waters.

The villagers had a very efficient response. They organized
teams of divers, especially trained to jump into the water to rescue
those who were drowning. Social workers were flown in from the county
seat to provide much needed adoption services. The local women's group
in the church had a Wednesday night knitting circle to provide clothing
for the rescued babies.

The operation ran very smoothly, and tney rescued many
babies, until one night, during a town council meeting, one of the

witnesses stood up and said, "Mr. Mayor, I have a question. I would



like to suggest that we take a team and go upstream to find out where
those babies are coming from, so we can look at the problem at its root
source, and stop the problem right there." '"Well," said the town
council, "that is not a bad idea, but you know, we really can't afford
to send anyone upstream. We need everyone here. If you pull anyone
away from these rescue operations, we won't be able to save as many
babies." "But don't you see," said the villager who had spoken up, "if
we were able to go upstream and stop whoever is throwing these babies
into the river, we wouldn't have this problem. We wouldn't have to
save babies from drowning any more. We would be stopping the problem
right at its root cause."

"Well," said the Mayor, "that is just too risky. We can't
afford it." So they never went upstream and they never found out who
was doing this to the babies. Because they were caring people and
because they were organized and efficient, through their efforts they
were able to save many, many babies from drowning, but many more also
drowned.

MR. GROVE: You have one minute to wrap up.

MR. HERZ-LANE: Yes, members of the Commission and friends in
the audience, it does make more sense to fight hunger at the root
causes, doesn't it -- to rescue those babies before they end up in tne
water, to make sure people have jobs and sufficient income so they
wouldn't be hungry in the first place?

The answer to America's hunger problem? Certainly not more
feeding places like the Good Samaritan Center, even though tney are
necessary right now to alleviate the symptoms in the short run. The
long-term answer to America's hunger problem is a four-letter word:
J-0-B-S.

Thank you for your attention.

MR. GROVE: I would like to take a moment to introduce a new
panel member who has just arrived, Assemblywoman Dolores Cooper from
Atlantic County. 0Dolores, we're glad to have you here.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN COUPER: Thank you. I'm sorry I'm late. I was
held up at the office.

MR. GROVE: Are there any questions from the panel? vonna?



MS. ROSS: In the portion of your testimony where you talked
about Camden being a Medically Underserved Area -- and I am following
along with the text you have given us -- I'm wondering if you can--
Perhaps you don't know how some of this was compiled, but you said that
malnutrition, the infant mortality rate, cancer, and heart diseases are
higher here than for the State as a whole and for the nation. In
compiling these statistics, have you any idea what figure was used for
malnutrition? Are they talking about underweight children? Are they
talking about iron deficiency? What parameters are being used to
determine malnutrition?

MR. HERZ-LANE: I cannot answer that question. In
this case, my wisdom came out of the newspaper, which didn't answer
that question either.

MR. GROVE: Okay. Do you want to pursue that, Donna?

MS. RUSS: No, thank you; however, I think it would be useful
for us to know how that was compiled.

MR. HERZ-LANE: Okay. That can be found out.

Mk. GROVE: Wolfgang, one of the things we have been
struggling with is the difference between chronic and--

FROM AUDIENCE: We can't hear back here. Are the microphones
not working?

MR. GROVE: There are no microphones. We are going to have
to speak up. If you can't hear, raise a hand.

FROM AUDIENCE: We can hear you.

MR. GROVE: You can hear me?

FROM AUDIENCE: No.

MR. GRUVE: You can't? There are more empty seats up here in
the front on the right side, if you want to come up here. There you
go.

Wolfgang, we have been wondering about the percentage of
chronic -- that is, the people who come to your Center regqularly --
versus the people who are moving in and out of the hunger cycle. Do
you have a way of helping us to gatner those kinds of statistics?

MR. HERZ-LANE: Well, I can give you an educated guess, just
from being there every day.

MR. GROVE: Can you do tnat?



MR. HERZ-LANE: We have a very high rate of people who come
on a regular kind of basis. In fact, the referral system which is in
place in the City of Camden, through a thing called the FEED Consortium
-- and you'll hear about that later on -- makes a difference between
what we call emergency food and supplemental food. Emergency means,
you know, food stamps were stolen, house burned down, and stuff like
that; supplemental means insufficient income.

I would guess that at least one-third of the people we serve
at the Good Samaritan Center are people who have insufficient income,
and who therefore need a supplement every month. If someone runs out
of food in January because they didn't have enough to begin with, it is
unrealistic to expect that same person to all of a sudden make it in
February, when they still have the same level of income and, of course,
the food stamp cuts figure in there very heavily.

MR. GROVE: Joe, did you have something?

MR. FORD: No, thank you; I pass.

MR. GROVE: Donna, one more.

MS. ROSS: Could you follow up on that point just one step
further? UOf the people you are serving because of insufficient income,
how many are participating in the Food Stamp Program, where perhaps
their allotments are not stretchinyg until the end of the montn? ,

MR. HERZ-LANE: Actually, in theory, everybody should be
participating in the Food Stamp Program, because we require that a
person who applies to us for emergency food, also apply for the Food
Stamp Program, if he or she is not already on it. In our case, and in
most of the other food providers' cases in the City, referrals
generally come from the Camden County Board of Social Services, which
does the initial screening, you know, establishing eligibility, and all
that. They are very strict about sending people to the Food Stamp
Office if they are not already on the program.

However, it often takes several weeks from the day you apply
to the day you actually get your food stamps. We have also had quite a
few cases where the Food Stamp Office didn't get the food stamps to
people on time. Just last month, a whole area of the City didn't get
their food stamps because 1 understand someone had them in nis or her

desk in the office.



MR. GROVE: Okay. Thank you very much. If there is anyone
in the audience who wishes to give testimony, but who didn't call in
advance, the young lady in the front here -- Margaret, would‘you put
your hand up -- or the young lady on the other side, Ellen, will be
glad to speak to you to see if we can put you into our discussion this
afternoon. If you have not called in and you want to give testimony,
please get in touch with either one of them.

May we have Helen Walters, please?

HELEN WALTERS: Mr. Moderator and panel: I am Helen Walters. 1 am the
Director of Your Food Shelf in East Camden. I am donating my allotted
time to Mrs. Eloise Beatty, who is a client of the Food Snelf, a senior
citizen, and Nora Rembert, who 1is the Secretary of the FEED
Consortium. I am turning my time over to these two ladies.

MR. GROVE: Please give us your name and spell it out for us,
and then go ahead and speak.

ELOISE BEATTY: I have to stand up.

MR. GRUOVE: Please stay near the microphone, at least, so we
can make sure we get what you say. There you go.

MS. BEATTY: Today, I welcome you on behalf of the Westfield
Acres Project of 1985 A.D. and the Food Shelf of 36th Street. 1 stand
before you to tell you that the Food Shelf and the church staff have
been a true help to me and so many tenants at the Westfield Acres
Project, and also to the new tenants who come there hungry, regardless
of race, creed, or color.

This Food Shelf, and many other Food Shelves, have been very
helpful to my father-in-law, my brother-in-law, and me, plus all of the
children of the Westfield Acres Project. They have contributed food,
clothes, shoes, and shelter, as well as books and toys for the children
on all kinds of special holidays. They have contributed otner books,
such as the Bible and books of poetry to help the children grow up nice
today.

They deliver items to different homes, such as the senior
citizen and handicapped home at 808 Market Street, here in Camden, New
Jersey, and to many others, such as the Volunteers of America at Cooper
and Market Streets,



The Salvation Army is also a tremendous help to us here in
the City of Camden. The Fire and Police Departments have also been a
help.

The Director of the Food Shelf is very nice. There are so
many different things you can pick up and learn there from other
organizations, such as poems, children's books, and literature for
senior citizens. There are tenants here from all walks of life. The
hospital staff and the clinics here in Camden have also been a
tremendous help to us.

I would just like to tell you a few more things. Mrs. Orea
Tapps and the Mayor of Camden, New Jersey and, also, the Chief of Staff
and Lt. Jones, have been a great help to us. They are making the
Westfield Acres Project so nice and so beautiful for the young people
and for the handicapped.

They are here to offer so many nice things to our school
children, the ones who are traveling by bus, truck, speed line, and the
Garden State in automobiles. We were supplied food year around,
spring, summer, fall, and winter of 1985 A.D. Most of the Food Shelves
are contributing so many nice things. The Food Shelf at 245 South
Black Horse Pike has been a tremendous help in emergencies.

In order to get sufficient food at the Food Shelf at 3oth
Street, behind Westfield Avenue, you should dial 365-6475, and you will
be helped right away. I also find them to be very understanding. You
can also pick up a lot of literature on food stamps and Medicaid there.

We are very glad you are holding this hearing here today. 1,
Eloise Beatty of Camden, New Jersey am speaking on behalf of the Food
Shelf at 36th Street. Thank you for listening to this message.

MR. GROVE: Eloise, will you please give us a copy of your
statement?

MS. BEATTY: You want a copy of this?

MR, GRUVE: Yes, but would you please wait a minute to see if
anyone wants to ask questions?

MS. BEATTY: Would you like to ask any questions about the
Food Shelf?



MS. ROSS: Ms. Beatty, can you help us to understand a little
bit better? Is the Westfield Acres Project-- 1Is that the correct name
of it?

MS. BEATTY: No. The Food Shelf distributes a lot of food to
the tenants and the senior citizens, such as myself, as well as the
handicapped. ‘It is located at -- I think I gave you the address.

MS. ROSS: If you gave us the address--

‘MS. BEATTY: It is located at 3515 Merritt Avenue. It's a
Presbyterian Church. As you come down Westfield Avenue, you make a
right turn. When you turn right, it is standing right there on the
right-hand side. You just push the door. They give you a lot of
help. They are very wonderful.

MS. ROSS: Is the project mostly for senior citizens and
handicapped people, or do families--

MS. BEATTY: It is for people who nave children who don't
have any clothes, or shoes, or tdys. They distribute toys all during
the year for, 1like, Christmas, New Year's, Easter, and things like
that.

MS. ROSS: And people also come during regular times of the
year for food?

MS. BEATTY: Yes.

MS. ROSS: I just have one more question, Terry. In addition
to the help people get for their children at the Food Shelf, do
children in Camden also have meals provided in school, do you know?

MS. BEATTY: Well, some children take a bag lunch. The Food
Shelf has a large variety, such as tuna fish, peanut butter and jelly,
and different things like that, and they can make a sandwich for the
little children. See, we want our children--

I speak mostly for the Food Shelf at 36th Street and
Westfield because I live in the Westfield Acres Project, but there are
other Food Shelves, such as the one at 245 South Black Horse Pike.
They deliver State food. All you have to do is make a phone call. You
dial 931-1722, and someone will be there to help you.

MR. GROVE: Thank you very much, Eloise. Will the next lady
please come up?

NORA REMBERT: Do you want a copy of my statement?
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MR. GROVE: Yes. Please give the reporters a copy.

MS. REMBERT: Good afternoon. My name is Nora Rembert. I am
here to speak for FEED; that is, Food for Equitable Emergency
Distribution. FEED was formed on January 25, 1982, in order to address
the problem of hunger in Camden. Because of Federal cutbacks, hignh
unemployment, and other economic and social factors, the numbers of
people coming to the various private and public agencies for emergency
food had increased alarmingly beyond the individual agencies' ability
to cope. Although no formal needs assessment had been conducted, the
following factors support evidence of the continuing problem:

Fifty-five percent of the population receives some form of
public support, i.e., welfare or Social Security; the average income,
city-wide, is $9,0UU0 per year; unemployment figures vary from 21% to
45% or more, depending on who collected this information; and, prior to
the organization of FEED, 24,245 meals were provided by the individual
agencies, and in 1983 and 1984, over 400,000 meals were provided.

The Camden County wWelfare Board reports an average of 1,0uU
families per month still coming in for emergency or supplemental
referrals for food. FEED has allowed for more than additional meals.
It has also provided:

1) Creation of new programs and new networking systems within
the County. This has resulted in more of the poor bpeing aware of
sources of help, and more dignified and less devastating methods of
securing help.

2) A forum for generating public awareness of tne hunyer
problem. Response has been to reach out to help through donations and
other methods of support.

3) Leverage for obtaining matching funds from foundations and
corporations aimed at hunger-solving projects, i.e., the Food Bank, and
truck and surplus comnodities.

4) Improved quantity and quality of service by making our
previous practices visible to scrutiny, and forcing reevaluation and
upgrading.

5) Upportunities for creative and dramatic potential

solutions to the hunger problem. By drawing attention to the problems,
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FEED agencies were able to unleash their creative energy to look for
new ways to handle old problems.

6) For the discovery of the massive need which has been
ignored or hidden due to the lack of available resources to deal with
it. We knew‘it was there but could not deal with it and, therefore,
were reluctant to stir it up. ‘

7) A means of breaking down barriers of isolation,
loneliness, and rejection, especially among the street people and the
elderly.

8) Opportunities to reach out and give help for other
problems besides hunger.

Although the FEED Consortium plan is still being developed,
some general goals and projects have been defined and/or initiated.
The target population is those individuals and families in need of
emergency food on a short-term basis during times of personal emergency
or those who cannot afford to purchase food.

Goals for the future:

1) Resources-Development: There is a need to continue to
seek funding sources to support the expanded level of services wnhich
was a direct result of the FEED organizing efforts and to provide
opportunities for creative solutions to the problem.

2) Potential Solutions:

a) South Jersey Food Bank - to provide surplus food to
provider agencies, including warehouse, freezer, refrigerator, truck,
and staff,

b) County-wide 24-hour coverage network for emergency
food baskets.

c) More congregate feeding sites.

d) Free-up USDA surplus food and facilitate distribution.

3) Advocacy and Outreach:

a) On behalf of the target‘population and in coordination
with CPAC -- the Community Planning Advocacy Coalition -- we seek out
and use opportunities to inform the general public and fundinyg sources
of the plight of the hungry and potential solutions.

b) More publicity to those in need, especially senior

citizens, of the resources and services available, and provide links.
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c) Supportive and Allied Services:
1. Transportation
. Food and Nutrition Planning

. Budgeting

2
3
4. Friendly Visitors
5. Health Services
6. Housing -- affordable and emergency
7. Jobs

d) Alternative Supermarket and/or Supermarket Franchise

Funding needs for the FEED Consortium for food purchasing per
year is $150,000; funding available in 1985 was %b4,9U0U. Funds needed
to support the South Jersey Ffood Bank for two years until
self-supporting is $80,00U per year. Uther funding needs are in the
process of development.

Thank you.

MR. GROVE: Joe?

MR. FUORD: Yes, I have a question. Ms. Rembert, from whom do
most of your donations come?

MS. REMBERT: The donations come from the churches, and from
private and public organizations.

MR. FURD: Are you talking about food now, and money also?

MS. REMBERT: Yes.

MR. FORD: Can you name some of those for us -- some of the
companies or businesses, other than churches?

MS. REMBERT: I don't have the exact information to give you,
so I won't give you any at all. I am the secretary, but since I have
only been with them for a few months, I don't have the exact statistics
or the exact names of the people from whom all of the contributions
come. I wouldn't be able to answer that.

MR. FORD: Okay. I just wondered if there were any major
contributors among the businesses in the private sector.

MR. GROVE: Helen, can you respond to that?

MS. WALTERS: I can. I am the former secretary of the FEEU
Consortium. When Nora was talking about the money, we have a pot of

money which 1is Federal Emergency Management Agency money. We nave
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gotten funds down from the government through the State and the County;
they seep back to us. Large corporations might be giving us food.
Campbell's Soup comes to mind; they make very generous donations to
establishments which are doing congregate feeding.

We have also gathered food from the Red Cross. People --
someone named Webster comes to mind -- have given food. Uff the top of
my head I can't think, but people have given food, as have churches and
private organizations.

MR. GROVE: Helen, it is important to us to have that
information. Could you gather it together in some written form and
send it along to us for our records? It would be nice to have that.

MS. WALTERS: All right.

MR. GROVE: Could you do that?

MS. WALTERS: I think our Food Bank Cobrdinator, who is going
to be speaking, may have some of that on the tip of her tongue, but we
will get it to you. \

MR. GRUVE: We would appreciate it.

ASSEMBLYWUMAN COOPER: I am not familiar with the human
service structure of Camden County, although I assume there is a
interrelationship. You did not mention nutrition sites. Uo you have
nutrition sites in Camden?

MS. WALTERS: Wnen you say nutrition sites, are you talking
about congregate feeding sites, people who go in--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CUOPER: Yes. We have 10 in Atlantic County.

MS. WALTERS: Yes, we do, in the City of Camden. We have
nutrition sites--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CUOPER: The City of Camden? What about the
County of Camden?

MS. WALTERS: In the County-- Are there any County people
here? 1 believe the OE0 is doing something down in East Berlin. I
know nutrition sites for seniors are being run in the County, in tne
churches in the suburbs. For homeless people outside the City of
Camden, there are no facilities in Camden County, other than for
battered women, who go to one certain place. These people would have
to come into Camden to go to the shelter run by the Volunteers of

America.
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN COOPER: In Camden City, how many sites do you
have?

MS. WALTERS: For congregate feeding? Wolfgang, can you help
me out with that? (no response) I would say four or five.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN COOPER: Which serve about how many people?

MS. WALTERS: Wolfgang can tell you that.

MR. GROVE: The question being asked is, how many congregate
nutrition sites are there in Camden?

MR. HERZ-LANE: In the City of Camden?

MR. GROVE: Yes, and about how many people are they serving?

MR. HERZ-LANE: Okay. There's Leaven House, Cathedral
Kitchen-- (Remainder of Mr. Herz-Lane's response lost to transcriber
because he was speaking from the audience, and was nowhere near a
microphone.)

MS. WALTERS: I said four or five.

MR. HERZ-LANE: We know that most of the on-site feeding
projects have anywhere between 50 and 150 people per day at the
beginning of the month. And then at the end of the month, it tends to
go higher. Between 3UU to 400 people are fed at on-site feedings.
Later on today, you-- (Remainder of statement lost to transcriber
because Mr. Herz-Lane was not near a microphone.)

MR. GRUVE: Mr. Stubbs?

MR. STUBBS: Ms. Rembert, the $9,000 annual income you
mentioned early in your address -- was that per family or per
one-parent family? 1 didn't get that.

MS. REMBERT: That is the average income for a-- We did not
differentiate whether it was a single-parent househcld or whether it
was-- It was for each family unit; let's put it that way.

MR. STUBBS: All right; thank you.

MR. GROVE: Donna?

MS. ROSS: I am curious about the ending part of your
testimony, where you talked about some of the creative ideas you have
for the future. You mentioned alternative supermarkets. Can you

explain a little bit about that?
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MS. REMBERT: Alternative supermarkets and/or supermarket
franchises. I imagine that coming under that-- Well, the Food Bank is
one alternative. This comes from my own observations. I just hope it
is going to be right, that what I'm thinking is true. The alternative
supermarket would have in mind the people it is coming in contact with,
and would not be able to shift the prices from one time of the month to
the other. These supermarkets would be there, not necessarily to make
a great profit, but to serve the community.'

'MS. ROSS: Thank you.

MS. REMBERT: Are you finished with me?

MR. GROVE: Yes. Thank you very much,

It is our custom at these hearings to try to go for about an
hour, and then take about a five-minute break, in order to let us all
sort of get hooked together again and get ready. So, Nancy, you will
be first on after we take our break.

May we have Gwen Arnold; please? Gwen, you will be the last
to give testimony at this point.

GWEN ARNOLD: Okay. My testimony will be short anyway.

My name is Gwen Arnold. 1 am a Registered Dietitian, and I
work for CHANS, which is a Visiting Nurses' Association in Camden
County. I see approximately 60 patients a month. Half of the 6U
patients I see have some sort of malnutrition. The malnutrition can
stem from two arsas. I have kind of narrowed it down to that. One is
some kind of cancer, where the malnutrition either comes from their
inability to eat or from their cancer treatments. The other area where
I see a large amount of malnutrition is in the elderly. Many of the
people I see are living by themselves. They do not have any family
members nearby to help them out with their meal shopping or food
preparation. Many of them are so sick that they can't prepare their
own meals. They are dangerous in the kitchen.

One thing that is nice for the elderly in the community is a
project called Meals on Wheels. The problem I have with this program
is that when I call, the waiting list is so long. The other problem I
am running into is that this program does not go to certain sections of
the community. There are certain towns in Camden County where thne

Meals on Wheels Program is not functioning.
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This is one area which I feel could really be expanded. I
don't know what anyone else's feelings are on this. I don't see a lot
of the malnutrition that people are seeing in Camden City because I do
not go into Camden City that frequently. My patients are more in the
southern part of the County. They are referrals from hospital
situations, where either the physician wants a dietitian to follow up,
or some nursing follow-up. They see the malnutrition there, and on
their assessment I go in.

Are there any questions?

MR. GROVE: Questions?

MR. FORD: Why doesn't Meals on Wheels go into certain
sections?

MS. ARNOLD: I have no idea. Apparently their funaing is a
problem, There are certain areas, or certain routes, or certain roads
in the County where they do not go. It is really a problem for the
elderly. \

MR. FORD: Do you think there just isn't enough money to go
around?

MS. ARNOLD: Probably; I have no idea.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN COOPER: Where is your food prepared?

Ms. ARNOLD: I don't deal with any food at all. I work for
the Visiting Nurses' Association.

MR. GROVE: She works for the Visiting Nurses' Association.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN COOPER: Oh,

MS. ARNOLU: I am a nutritionist for the Visiting Nurses in
Camden County.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN COOPER: You mentioned Meals on Wheels. Where
is that food prepared in relation to where the meals go?

MS. ARNOLD: I think it is prepared in certain sections
throughout the County. I think there are certain food sites where the
food is prepared. I am not an expert on Meals on wheels. I think if
we had someone who could speak on that, it would throw some light.

MR. BARTUN: You spoke about malnutrition. What kind of
malnutrition? Are you seeing kwashiorkor? Are you seeing marasmus?
Are you seeing vitamin deficiency? What kind of malnutrition are you

seeing?
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MS. ARNOLD: A lot of it is protein/calorie malnutrition, or
just protein malnutrition. It is kind of a mixed bag. I mean, you can
see any type.

MR. BARTON: In your estimation, is it slight? Is it severe?

MS. ARNOLD: Not severe. You know, I am not seeing the very
emaciated people, but it is from not getting enough prdtein in their
diet long-term, or not getting enough calories, one or the other. Ur
sometimes it is mixed.

MS. R0OSS: 1I'd like to follow up on this. First, can you
clarify for me-- Are you working exclusively with elderly patients?

MS. ARNOLV: No, but the majority of the patients we see are
elderly.

MS. ROSS: 0f the approximately 6uU patients you see per
month, approximately how many of them are suffering from
protein/calorie malnutrition?

MS. ARNOLD: I would say approximately 25.

MS. ROSS: Twenty-five patients per month?

MS. ARNOLD: That would be a combination of both. Many of
them are cancer patients, and tnat is a totally different situation.
But, on the other hand, there are a lot of people who are just not able
to prepare their own meals, do their own shopping, or get adequate
meals because of facility inadequacies. They need the assistance.

MR. GROVE: Are you talking about 25 out of 6U as your own
personal caseload?

MS. ARNOLD: Yes.

MR. GROVE: How many visiting nurses are there in the County
like you, who would have a similar kind of caseload?

MS. ARNOLD: In our facility, we probably have at least 6uU
nurses. 1 do not see all of the patients; I see patients who they
refer to me or who are referred by a hospital. There are two different
ways I can have a patient referred to me. They may see a patient
initially and refer him or her to me, or a person could come rignt out
of a hospital with a referral for a nutritionist. So there are
probably many patients who are overlooked whom I am not seeing myself.

MR. GROVE: That is what I was trying to get, some sense of

how large the population is.
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MS. ARNOLD: Yes. There are several Visiting Nurses'
Associations in Camden County. We are not the sole Visiting Nurses'
Association.

MR. GROVE: Okay.

MS. ROSS: May I ask just one more question? Other than
referral to Meals on Wheels, which you indicated does not fulfill the
need, what other kinds of referrals or services, or what other kinds of
help can you offer people who you judge to be malnourished?

- MS. ARNOLD: A lot of times I turn a person over to a social
worker. She is a lot more aware of things that are available in the
community. I know she has gotten food from the food banks. A lot of
times I contact churches. There might be someone who could help the
patient out in that respect. Probably our social worker would be the
one who could speak on that. Okay?

MR. GROVE: Thank you very much. We will now take about a

five-minute break, and then we wiil be back.
(RECESS)

AFTER RECESS

MR. GROVE: We are ready to reconvene the hearing. Nancy, we
are going to experiment a little bit here to see if these microphones
will pick you up. The one on your right is the hot microphone for all
of us. The one on the left is for the taping. As scon as we have all
quieted down, we will be able to find out if this will work for us.

We would like you to give your name, spell your name, tell us

what organization you are with, your title with the organization, and
then proceed with testimony. You have 10 minutes to say whatever you
like, and then we will have a chance to question you.
NANCY DIETLER: Good afternoon. I am Nancy vietler. I am the
Supervisor of Emergency Services, a program of the Catholic wWelfare
Bureau of the Diocese of Trenton.

Emergency Services is a 24-hour crisis program designed to

meet the crisis needs of people in their struggle to survive. In 1904,
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Emergency Services provided comprehensive assistance to 14,445
individuals in Burlington County. The services included: Emergency
food, 16,869 days of food; emergency and alternative housing, 15,226
nights' lodging, at an average cost of $4.17 a night; clothing; job
resources; energy assistance; consumer counseling; advocacy information
referrals; and other emergency assistance. -Case management, including
follow-up, is an integral part of Emergency Services' operations.

Emergency Services provides these unique and comprehensive
services to the hungry and homeless with a full-time staff of four.
Our 24-hour, 365 days-a-year component was developed in 1980 when we
joined forces with CONTACT, another United Way agency. CONTACT is a
24-hour phone help 1line which provides information and referrals
throughout  Burlington  County. Our partnership has ensured
accessibility of these comprehensive services to people whenever their
need is acute. A double beeper system, three outreach sites, and the
main facility in Riverton ensure program accessibility to respond
immediately to the critical needs of the hungry and the homeless.

The hungry and homeless are sheltered not within a shelter,
but through an effective and efficient sheltering system. This system,
called alternative housing, provides a continuum of housing options
from immediate shelter in area motels through prevention of
homelessness via eviction and foreclosure components. We can capably
and systematically place the homeless in an immediate housing option --
a motel -- while searching for long-term solutions. The options
for long-term solutions include: rooming, boarding, shared 1living,

apartment rentals, housing rentals, volunteer homes, and foreclosure
and eviction prevention.

During the sheltering, long-term nousing options are
explored and individual clients and families are hooked into available
programs within their eligibility, such as AFDC, General Assistance,
and SSI. Networking and advocacy are integral parts of this case
management approach. Emergency Services has developed a coordinated
network of referral and service relationships, and has been
designated as convener of the CEAS Committee in Burlington County.
CEAS stands for the Comprehensive Emergency Assistance System, wnich

has been called for by Governor Kean.
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Food providers coordinate through our program to meet most
hunger needs. This effort has increased accessibility of food
resources to our hungry. The resources, however, are quickly drained.
Food is provided to additional sites in Burlington County through
Emergency Services' supplies. Emergency Services is a member of the
Philadelphia Food Bank. We receive  donations from churches,
businesses, individuals, and community groups, as well as purchasing in
the retail stores. Emergency Services receives 38,525 SSBu funds,
earmarked from July 1, 1984 through June 30, 1985, for the hungry and
the homeless. We received the funding in Oecember, and are currently
operating out of May's moneys. We have less than $3,00u left.

The numbers of hungry are increasing, and they are more
desperate. The grants, unemployment benefits, and fixed incomes are
insufficient. Have you watched people shopping in the grocery stores?
You can see the invisible poor if you just look. As a rural County,
Burlington County's homeless and hungry are less visible than they
would be in a city. However, they are there. They are living in
parks; they are living in cars; they are living in chicken coops,
trying to shelter, clothe, and feed their children in substandard
housing without electricity and water. UOur children are suffering.
Think of the plight of the child never knowing where his next meal is
coming from, or if there will even be one. How do these children face
their peers in school, if they even go to school? Where will they

sleepvtonight? wWhy are their Moms and Dads always sad? Is this what
we want for our children?

I remeimber one little five-year-old girl who came into our
anency with her mother for food. We ask the children who visit to take
a book or a game home from our waiting room. The little girl smiled
and said, "Thank you." Wnen my staff brought out the box of food, her
face lit up. She was so excited, and she reached for a box of Pac-man
cereal. She hugged it; she literally cradled that box of cereal down
the steps. It was a rare treat for a hungry child. Her mother was in
tears.

Our new poor-- A recently unemployed man, for example, who

was in his early 5Js, was embarrassed to have to ask for food. He nad
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always provided for his family and he had now been laid off. He was in
danger of losing his home, and he had to come to us. He put the food
boxes in the trunk of his car so his neighbors wouldn't see them. A
67-year-old man living on Social Security told us that prior to our
advocacy with the food stamps and our food resource nefwork, he was
eating out of-restaurant trash cans in Burlington County.

Emergency Services has seen the numbers of hungry increase
dramatically. We now provide over 1,000 days worth of food a month.
In January, 1984, for example, it was 1,001; May, 1,846 days worth of
food; October, 1,374; and, in December, 2,912 days worth of food. On
February 26, 1985, The Burlington County Times reported that: "Hunger

has reached epidemic proportions nationwide, leaving up to 20 million
people vulnerable to fear and illness because of economic and conscious
government policy, a group of doctors and public health experts said
today." The report "Hunger in America, The Growing Epidemic," by the
Physician Task Force on Hunger in\America, which was headed by J. Larry
Brown of the Harvard School of Public Health, followed a year-long
investigation by researchers who traveled back roads, opened
refrigerators, and searched out the human face of hunger. They found
that despite the economic recovery, hunger 1is getting worse, not
better.

The philosophical support of Governor Kean, and financial
support of DYFS, Title XX, United Way, and the Chosen Board of
Freeholders of Burlington County, through its Burlington County Human
Services Advisory Council recommendations, have enabled Emergency
Services to respond to the cry of the homeless and hungry of Burlington
County. This is a beginning, but only a beginning. Welfare, General
Assistance, and food stamp benefits need to be increased even more.
Our unemployed, our marginally employed, and our SSI and SS recipients
struggle every day. We would respectfully request that as there are
line items in the Governor's proposed budget now being reviewed by the
JAC for the homeless, there also be a comparable line item for the
hungry. Emergency Services and other feeding programs need increased
and continued support. Children do go to bed hungry in the United
States of America.

Thank you.
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MR. GROVE: Thank you, Nancy. Are there any questions?

MR. FORD: That is a very interesting suggestion, Nancy, that
there be a line item for the hungry. In what agency's budget was that?

MS. DIETLER: In the State budget.

MR. FORD: Have you made this suggestion to anyone in a
position of authority -- your local Assemblyman or State Senator?

MS. DIETLER: Yes. We have talked to David Schwartz. I also
sit on the Governor's Task Force for the Homeless, whose report I trust
you are familiar with. It just came out; I just got mine. This has
some of the feeding sites in it, too. I sit on that and, yes, we have
discussed this problem also. But I thought bringing it before vyou
would be appropriate.

MR. FORD: Thank you, but I am still curious; I am not quite
finished. What kind of response did you get from these officials?

MS. DIETLER: I haven't gotten a response yet.

MR. FORD: They were noncommittal?

MS. DIETLER: I wrote my suggestions in a letter, and I
haven't received anything yet.

MS. ROSS: I have a couple of short questions. Une,
approximately how many children, like the little girl you talked about,
is your program serving?

MS. DIETLER: How many children? Probably half of the number
we service are children.

MS. RUSS: Do you know whether meals are available to these
children in schools or child-care centers, or if they are participating
in other types of food programs?

MS. DIETLER: There are child-development centers and
day-care centers available in Burlington County -- of course, not
enough -- but when they go to those places, they do eat. However, a
lot of these children are not attending any of those programs. What we
attempt to do in Emergency Services is get the people hooked into the
programs that are available and that they are entitled to. Some
schools do have food services. I can't recall the name of it, but I am
aware that there is some type of a discussion going on in the County.

Some of the churches are talking about trying to have wmore fooa
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programs available through the schools, but because of the éuidelines,
I don't think as many children are eligible as should be.

MS. ROSS: I think what they are referring to is, eligibility
criteria has changed. You mentioned that with one of the people you
spoke to, your organization did some advocacy on his behalf concerning
food stamps. Can you explain what kinds. of advocacy activities you
participate in?

MS. DIETLER: Certainly. We advocate with basically every
agency and program in the County. As I mentioned, we coordinate and
are working with the CEAS Committee, and have daily contact with just
about all of the agencies. We have found in Burlington County that the
informal system has been in existence for quite some time -- working
through us -- and we continued it. Food stamps, for example. When
persons call in to the County to be given a date for a food stamp
application, unless they state rather specifically that this is an
emergency, and that they have no food, they could possibly be given a
date three weeks to a month or so in the future.

What we ask is that the client call the Welfare Board back
and say, "I am really hungry. I have no food at all," and see what
they can do about their date. If it isn't moved up sufficiently, which
to us in an emergency would be that day, then we will call and advocate
for a move-up date, provide them with some food, and continue calling
the Welfare Board.

Now, part of this Human Services' money which came through --
$4,000 of the $42,000 that Burlington County received -- went to the
Burlington County Welfare Board, so they could give a food stamp
applicant, upon his or her day of application, a food voucher, to kind
of support our services and tide them over. So, Burlington County
received $42,000 -- $42,525 of the Fiscal Year 1985 money. We received
$38,525 and the Burlington County Welfare Board received $4,000, so
they could do this for food stamp applicants. This really has helped.

We also do job referrals -- the job training partnership.
You know, we'll do advocacy wherever we can, in an attempt to have our
service be the last. We are an emergency program, not a maintenance

program. We are the last on the ladder of all the other services which
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are out there, which is why we need to know what they are. So it is a
continuing process to keep up with all of the programs out there.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN COOPER: I am not hearing everything you're
saying--

MS. DIETLER: I'm sorry.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN  COOPER: --but at any time in your
presentation, did you mention what Burlington County is doing as far as
school lunch programs are concerned?

MS. DIETLER: I am really not familiar with that.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN COOPER: Well, you mentioned hungry children,
and I wonder if there is any program in your schools.

MS. DIETLER: I really don't know. I would hesitate to speak
on it because I don't really have the information.

MR. GROVE: Nancy, in some of the testimony we've heard, we
are beginning to get a picture of the hungry people as young,
single-parent, usually female with children homes -- five family units
which are coming for help. Are you running into that at all? wWnhere is
the age group you're serving at this point?

MS. DIETLER: Our age group goes from infancy through the
elderly. We provide services to the whole spectrum.

MR. GROVE: What is the majority, though, that you are
facing?

MS. DIETLER: The majority would be the female, single-parent
households.

MR. GROVE: Really?

MS. DIETLER: With regard to the elderliy, we have found in
Burlington County that the Office on Aging has a real good system of
nutrition sites. A lot of it is available; a lot of it is being aware
of what is available out there. I would say that half of our people
are the female, single, head-of-households. However, another
increasing number, which a lot of people tend to disregard, is the
male, single, head-of-household. We have had an increasing number of
fathers taking care of their children, where the women have left.

MR. STuUBBS: Ms. Dietler, in your opinion, if you were asked
to give tne one most important reason, or cause, for the extenaed

hunger you see daily, what would you say?
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MS. DIETLER: Insufficient economic resources.

MR. STUBBS: I beg your pardon?

MS. DIETLER: Insufficient economic resources. People do not
have the money to get food.

MR. STUBBS: That's rather broad, but I will accept it.
Thank you. i

MS. DIETLER: Well, I would say if people are on welfare and
the money isn't enough-- They get a grant of %4472.00, plus their food
stamps -- whatever that is -- and they are expected to maintain
themselves in a house, with rent and utility pills. If they are on
welfare, they are eligible for Home Energy Assistance in the winter,
and right now they can get two emergency grants of $20U.0J each if they
get the request in within a 30-day period. So there are programs out
there to help them to subsist, along with what they get. But each
month they are expected to live on %$44Z.JU plus wnhatever their food
stamps are, and the Welfare Board will tell you that their food stamps
are not expected to be the only money they spend on food. They are
supposed to use part of their grant for food as well.

Look at the person on ueneral Assistance, the single person
-- $192.00 -- that's a month.

MR. GROVE: Thank you very much, Nancy.

MS. DIETLER: You're welcome.

MR. GROVE: May we have Mildred Marcon, please?
MILDRED W. MARCON: Mr. Grove and members of the Commission: I am
Mildred Marcon. I am from the People That Love Center of the Calvary
Chapel in Williamstown, New Jersey. That is in Gloucester County,
although I reside in Camden County.

I am the Director of the Center. We started in September,
1984. Our objective was to help the needy, to feed them, and to
furnish them with used clothing, as the Lord provides. Thank uod, we
have never been without clothing to give out, and as we grew, the Lord
also provided the food.

We started very small -- we did not advertise -- but we have
grown. Each month we grow larger and larger. Uur small cnurch has

been our source. Once in a while we receive a gift from someone fron
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outside, but mainly we receive things from our own people. In our
labors, people have become acquainted with the ministry, and we have
many others from different churches who are helping us to operate
physically. In fact, we have several different churches represented in
our work force. It is all volunteer.

We perceive the hunger situation and the lack of adequate
housing and other needs to be a deplorabie and traumatic problem for
hundreds of families in our area. UOur People That Love Center has been
providing food, clothing, and counsel -- and I might say hope -- to a
quantity of up to 15U families in one week for the past year and a
half. A total of 635 families, many being weekly repeats -- they come
back, but not in that number; the number is how many are actually
represented -- were served from May, 1984 to March, 198>. This past
Tuesday we had 130 families, and the previous Sunday we had about eight
additional families. So we served about 138 families this week. We
are open from ten to two every Tuesday, and also on Sundays, following
the service. We have a telephone number where we can be reached at any
time for emergency situations. We estimate that about 2Us of these
families are senior citizens.

The expenses of our Center are financed by free-wiltl

donations from people in our small church. The work is done as a labor
of love by people from several churches in the area. We obtain food
from different sources, and are currently paying toward most of the
food. Our finances are constantly strained. we need financial
assistance and food donations from other sources in order to continue
our labor of love. We are thankful that uovernor Kean is sympathetic
with the problem and has expressed a firm commitment to establish a
comprehensive, humane policy to eliminate the injustice of hunger and
need in our State.

The following list describes briefly the various types of
needs encountered in our Center; also, the reasons why people come to
us:

1) Tnhere is a great lack of knowledge of available programs
for various categories of assistance;

2) A shortage of, or unavailability of food stamps;

28



3) Unemployment situations, sometimes for prolonged periods
of time;

'4) Part-time jobs that are woefully inadequate for family
support; -

5) People that earn just too much to qualify for welfare
and must copé with household and children's expenses, and thus have
very little left for food and other necessities. I might say here that
doctors' bills and medication are very important;

6) People who are buying their homes and fear having to
repay welfare or relief, or being penalized in some other way. These
families go hungry and become desperate;

7) Illiteracy is a major problem among some groups,
deterring finding or applying for jobs;

8) Not enough income is coming in to provide adequate food,
clothing, and shelter;

9) Small Social Security income -- inadequate for food and
all other expenses;

10) Small Disability Social Security income, along with
inability to find or do work. I find that many of these people are
quite handicapped by their physical conditions;

11) Waiting for Unemployment Compensation. In the interim,
money runs out, creating hunger;

12) Waiting to become eligible for welfare. Sometimes also
waiting just between jobs;

13) One family, losing their home, was taken off and refused
welfare because they had a little equity in an old truck, which they
used to sell vegetables from, for a little income. I know them
personally;

14) Broken families who are left destitute because they are
not receiving support from the husband. This is a big one;

15) Newly separated families, where the husband pulls out
and takes his cneck with him, leaving the family with no food or
money. In one case, the children had not eaten in two days;

16) Elderly shut-ins who need to pe located and food

deliveries made to them. This is a problem I haven't been aple to cope
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with because I don't know where to find out just who these people are
who are really needy; and,

17) Needy families who have no means of transportation to a
food pantry or center.

I was blessed in the last two weeks to have a lady come to me
from the Office on Aging. She came yesterday with her forms. She sat
down, and as the folks came in, she talked to the senior citizens to
see where she could find help for them, in addition to what they were
receiving. I regard this as a real asset to our Center.

We find a tremendous need for housing. By the time people
pay rent, there isn't much left for food. There was one particular
case which came into our Center in the last two weeks -- I referred to
the lady from the Office on Aging, but this lady is not elderly --
a woman with an 11-year-old daughter, a 15-year-old son, and a
17-year-old son, and she has nowhere to live. She has to live in one
home and her children somewhere\else. She is cooking for them and
taking the food to them, which necessitates driving several miles back
and forth. The gas used is eating up the money which should be for
rent and food. She has to borrow the car of the woman who took her in,
but this is only temporary. She can't live there long because the
other lady has a family and it is only an apartment.

Housing is a tremendous problem, and it affects the food
because the more a person has to pay out for housing, the less he or
she has for food.

The above is a partial list of the sad plight of hundreds of
families who have come to our attention. I trust your Commission will
be able to help to alleviate the suffering and injustice imposed upon
these people. A suggested solution to part of the problem would be to
subsidize the nonprofit organizations to expand their services, as it
is volunteer labor with little overhead, thus saving the State many
thousands of dollars.

MR. GROVE: Thank you.

MS. MARCON: You're welcome.

MR. GROVE: Are there any questions from the panel? Donna?
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MS. ROSS: I think your list of causes of hunger is very
important information. I have a question about one thing you
mentioned. Regarding the number of people who are saying they have
incomes just over the eligibility level for various assistance
programs, have you any idea how many of those used to be eligible for
these programs and are now ineligible because of changes in the income
guidelines? Do you have any idea of how many people have been taken
off these programs?

MS. MARCON: A couple have mentioned it to me. Actually, I
don't take the registry. When they come in we have them register, but
another lady takes that. I work in a different area. 1 bring them
hope. I give them a Scripture of the day. But there have been some
who happened to speak to me personally as I mingled with them. They
told me that they had been on, but they were taken off. One rather
young lady, who has four children, told me that her husband's back was
injured. They gave him a certéin length of time, and then said,
"That's long enough." But he was still unable to get work. So they

are struggling along on the 1little bit she makes working in a
Laundromat.

MR. GROVE: Wuestions? (no response) Thank you very much.
If your testimony has been written, we would be pleased to have that
handed to the ladies. It will help them in their transcription.

May we have Madelyn Mears, please?

MADELYN MEARS: My name is Madelyn Mears. 1 am the Director at the
Christian Caring Center in Pemberton, Burlington County. Our Center
was set up to provide emergency food and clothing. It has been open
for two years, and has now become a supplemental type of thing. We
have gone way over.

When we first opened up, we were supposed to just be an
emergency type of thing. Now, we serve apout 20U families -- about sOu
people -- a month. Out of that I would say that approximately 25% are
emergencies, and 75% are people on assistance who continually need
supplemental help. They just don't have enough money to stretch their

food budgets whatsoever.
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At the Center, in 1983, we gave out‘$21,700 worth of food
stuffs. We served 6,720 people. In 1984, it went to $35,600 worth of
food stuffs, and we served 9,600 people. That is an increase of 61%
over one year. I agree that these types of programs are just a
Band-Aid, but they are a much needed Band-Aid. I really feel that you
have to look at their whole situation in order to-- Each person is an
individual, but they mainly fall into certain groups.

Our major group is theb broken family where the women are
between 20 and 30 years of age, with children. The people are on
assistance programs, but they just can't make ends meet. They receive
$400.00 or $45U.U0 a month, and the average rent is between $40U.U0 and
$500.00 a month for a house or an apartment. If they are lucky enough
to get something cheaper, the electric bills just sock it to them.
Most of them are in all-electric houses in our area. They do get
emergency Energy Assistance from welfare, but come summertime-- When
you look at situations like this, they get cut off over the winter
because the electric bills have gone sky-high. By tne time spring
comes, or summer, they just don't have any more electricity; they don't
have any more water., They just have to eat out of tuna fish cans,
Gino's, and everything else, which is so much higher than the regular
shopping things.

I really feel that if you could just educate these people on
how to plan out their meals and how to plan their budgets, and increase
their amounts of money, that would solve the problem -- as long as you
educate them along the way and show them how they can be educated so
they can get a job. Thank you.

MR. GROVE: Are there any questions from the panel?

MR. FORD: Yes, Terry, I have one.

MR. GROUVE: Joe?

MR. FORD: Are you saying you think education is tne main
solution, or the most important answer to the problem?

MS. MEARS: Yes, I am. 1 think half of our continuous type
people are second and third generation welfare clients. They really
just don't understand that if they could go out and get a job, it woula
be much more beneficial to them. Tney just don't understand that.

They don't realize what can happen with that.
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MR. FORD: Would this take care of the lack of cash? OUne of
your colleagues, a little earlier, said she thought that was the main
problem -~ just not enough funds to go around.

MS.. MEARS: Well, eight years ago, I was the product of a
broken family, and I had one small child. I had to go through the
system. 1 was lucky enough to have my mother; I could go to live with
her. I could not have made it on the outside with the money I had. I
was also lucky enough to have a high school diploma. So I applied for
financial aid to a college and I was accepted. Most of these people
don't even know what exists out there. First, they need to get their
high school diplomas. Many of them don't even have that. They don't
know there is money out there for child care, plus money for college
tuition.

MR. FORD: But between now and the time they could get their
high school diploma, hopefully, and apply for college, they still have
to eat. In other words, the educétion is not an immediate solution to
the problem. There is a lot of development and education and what have
you that has to take place before they can apply for admission to a
college. In the meantime, they continue to have this problem of not
enough funds. Is that a fairly accurate summary?

" MS. MEARS: Yes.

MR. GROVE: Madelyn, if the State government were to do one
thing that you think would be the most important thing they could do
with funds they have available to help you or to help the people you're
helping, what would it be?

MS. MEARS: 1 would like to see them split it. I would like
to see them increase the amount of money the people are now getting,
and use the remainder to show them how they can educate themselves to
alleviate the problem, which would be a long-term thing.

MR. GROVE: So, you're asking for money for emergency
assistance, and money also for the long-term educational process to
help people to move on further?

MS. MEARS: To be a permanent solution.

MR. GROVE: Any other questions?

ASSEMBLYWUMAN COOPER: Let me ask her one question.

MR. GROVE: Sure.

33



ASSEMBLYWOMAN COOPER: Do you represent Burlington County?

MS. MEARS: Yes.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN COOPER: In your Department of Agriculture, do
you have a homemaker person who goes out to teach nutrition and how to
budget money? We have one in our County, do you have one in
Burlington?

MS. MEARS: I really don't know. Of the clients I serve,
none of them have ever told me that they have been visited.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN COOPER: It is my understanding that Cook
College, in conjunction with County Ag agents, has a homemaker service
which sends someone out to these families, where told or asked, to
teach them how to buy -- how to spend wisely -- and how to get the most
for their food dollar.

MS. MEARS: There is a family learning center in Browns
Mills which I understand will do that, but their clients number maybe
20, and we have over 420 in our files. So it is just not -- they don't
know about it.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN COOPER: We should make a note about the use of
a home economist in each county.

MR. GROVE: Thank you very much, Madelyn. I understand Mr.
Forrest is here to share his thoughts with us. He came with Ms,
Walters earlier. Mr. Forrest, would you please come forward?

We will take a break at the end of Mr. Forrest's testimony.
Ellen, you will be first on the docket afterward.

STANLEY E. FORREST: My name is Stanley Forrest. I am from the
Abundant Living Fellowship Church and Mission. I am Chairman of the
Board of Deacons and Treasurer.

Many of the people we serve at Abundant Living Fellowship
Church and Mission are not chronic hardship cases. Most of the people
we get are people in temporary need, people who fall through the cracks
in the system. A large percentage of these people have never been on
welfare or public assistance of any kind. They are people who are
temporarily unemployed or temporarily in desperate straits who need

help. The number is increasing.
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Our purpose, in part, is to provide emergency services.
We refer the chronic and ongoing needy to the proper agencies. Our
long-range goal is a large one. We hope, in concert‘ with other
churches and organizations, to make many of the agencies such as ours
unnecessary., )

We feel the churches can and should be an integral social
force in helping to improve the quality of life. We all know Camden's
present condition and needs. We feel that a large part of the burden
rests with the people. We feel that the people are not only the
problem, but a part of the solution.

Qur church is presently working with cocerned groups toward
teaching self-sufficiency. Our feeding program is intended, in part,
to be a door opener. We feel that as we gain the confidence of those
we serve, we may be able to influence them. Presently, Camden has a
disproportionate share of needy people. The need is critical. We
recognize the magnitude of Camden's need, and we intend to make a
beginning.

MR. GROVE: Is that it?

MR. FORREST: That's it.

MR. GROVE: Are there any questions?

MS. ROSS: I have a question for clarification. A number of
people before you, and now you, have talked about situations of
temporarily unemployed people. I wonder if this area has been
experiencing problems with specific plant closings or otner kinds of
places of employment closing down. Is this something the folks you are
serving have been experiencing, or is it just a general unemployment?

MR. FORREST: It is general unemployment. As we can easily
see, there have been plant closings in the area. There have been
layoffs, and the seasonal shutdown of the construction industry, as
well as other seasonal employment.

MR. GROVE: Thank you very much, If your testimony is
written, will you please share it with the ladies. They would be glad

to have it as part of today's record. Thank you for beiny with us.

35



We will now take a five-minute break. We will return at four

o'clock, or a little after.
(RECESS)
AFTER RECESS

MR. GROVE: We are ready to proéeed with the last hour of the
afternoon, at the urging of the clock and several in the room. May we
have Ellen Ward, please?

ELLEN WARD: Are you ready?

MR. GROVE: Yes, we're ready.

MS. WARD: I'm Ellen Ward, the Coordinator of the South
Jersey Food Bank. I was hired by the FEED Consortium, which is the
Food for Equitable Emergency Distribution Consortium. Since its
formation, the Consortium has made a significant contribution toward
alleviating hunger problems by bringing together 25 agencies directly
involved in congregate feeding, distribution of food packages, and
referral services.

As the Consortium grew, they felt the need for a Food Bank in
the area, thus I was hired, just five months ago, as a coordinator,
soon to be the Executive Director of tne South Jersey Food Bank, Inc.
I am only on a part-time basis as I am funded by grant money, which is
in limited supply. Throughout these past few months, I have been
increasingly aware of the need for a Food Bank in the area. Two
separate editorials in the local papers -- copies of which I have left
on vyour desk -~ have recently heightened my awareness of the
seriousness of hunger. They both referred to the Physician Task Force
on Hunger in America. I left a top heading of that report for you. I
implore you to read that report. It is outstanding.

Mr. Claude Lewis, who is the editor of The Philagelphia

Inquirer said: '"Hunger has reached epidemic proportions. We should
declare war on hunger. Up until now, it has been fought witn only a
popgun.,"

As coordinator of this Food Bank, I have been acquiring a
list of agencies which feed tne poor. 1 have acquired about 6>

different agencies which are doing congregate feeding and emergency
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food bank feeding. Some are receiving food from me now, and some are
waiting until our warehouse doors open. On the limited statistical
information available, I was able to calculate that 22 of these
agencies in Camden City served, last month only, approximately 126,750
meals -- just for last month -- to the needy. That is a lot of meals.
At $.52 a meal, that is a lot of money.

The community Food Bank which I am to start will work with
businesses in the community to eliminate waste by channeling this food
to agencies which feed the needy. The Food Bank will provide for the
centralized solicitation, storage, and distribution of food donations,
if food 1is available through agencies and organizations with
established programs for feeding the poor. Every component of the food
industry is a target for solicitation -- the farmer, the grower, tne
packer, the processor, the manufacturer, the distributor, and the
retailer. Our Food Bank will be an affiliate of Second Harvest, which
is a national network of food solicitation.

In the food bank system, many people benefit. The donor
benefits, as he or she has only one number to call for allocation of
surplus merchandise, one source from which to compile tax records. The
local feeding programs benefit. They are assured of a greater variety
of food items and a more dependable handling and distribution of
donated food. It provides protection against abuse. All donated food
is inventoried and monitored to assure legitimate use for feeding the
needy, and it saves them money.

In the few months that I have been employed, I have
distributed over 95,U00 pounds of food through the South Jersey Food
Bank. Just think if we had a warehouse what kind of numbers I could
distribute. The Department of Agriculture claims that one-fifth of all
food produced for human consumption is lost annually in the United
States. This represents 137 million tons of food worth $31 billion.
The report noted that 49 million people could have been fed each year
with this so-called '"waste food," if appropriate programs were
developed to salvage and distribute. The United States government
estimates that $6.Z2 billion worth of food produced in this country each
year is lost at the wholesale/retail level, while %16 billion -- 5z

million tons -- is wasted annually by consumers. As you can see, we

37



have enough food to end hunger in this country, and in this State, and
in this County, and we have enough wealth to end it. All we need is
for the powers-that-be to coordinate, cooperate, communicate, and
legislate to stop this injustice.

In my limited time in the area of food banking, I have seen
areas where the powers-that-be could possibly 1legislate to help.
Again, in my limited five months of time, I have drawn some conclusions
-- and at some point in time I may be corrected on these -- and one is,
help to make United States commodities more available to food banks and
agencies involved with distribution. I have been told through the
Philadelphia Food Bank that there has been a problem in getting the
commodities out to the people.

Two, legislate so that farmers will get a tax benefit for
donating produce. This will indeed help the South Jersey farmers,
particularly those who wish to donate to us and all of the agencies
throughout the State. They will donate if they get this benefit.

Three, funding is poor for food banks and agencies involved
in feeding the needy. As an example, last night there was a protest in
Harrisburg regarding the $8 to $12 million that the Legislature had set
aside for the state Emergency Food Grant Fund for food banks and
distribution sites. If we in New Jersey could implement something
similar, it would be ideal.

The food bank is one of the answers for helping to eliminate
the injustice of hunger, but we need help.

MR, GROVE: Ellen, are you the Food Bank which was the
recipient of the $25,000 grant from the casinos?

MS. WARD: No, that's Atlantic City.

MR. GROVE: That's in Atlantic City. Is there another food
bank being established down there?

MS. WARD: Right.

MR. GRUVE: That will be different than yours?

MS. WARD: Right.

MR. GROVE: Okay.

MS. WARD: I understand there will be an affiliate of Second

Harvest coming out of New York, but not the Philadelphia one. They

will be servicing--
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MR. GROVE: So you're connected directly to Philadelphia, not
to Newark?

MS. WARD: Right.

MR. GROVE: Okay.

MS. WARD: We serve a different territory.

MR. GROVE: What will be your territory?

MS. WARD: Camden, Burlington, Gloucester, and Salem
Counties. ’

MR. GROVE: And are you close to having a site, a warehouse,
and everything?

MS. WARD: We're close to having a site, but the money for
the renovation of the site is a problem.

MR. GROVE: Are there any other questions?

MR. STuUB8S: Ms. Ward, to your knowledge, has there been any
attempt, or any effort made, to lease the services and facilities
presently operating in the communities where you are functioning? I
know up North there are other people working in the same areas you're
working in. I would like to know if there has been any attempt to link
the services and facilities together, as the different groups are
doing?

MS. WARD: Oh, absolutely. The Food Bank is the distribution
site for the surplus food we gain. We work with all of the agencies,
as far as holding the surplus, and as far as coordinating. Also, we're
working with Atlantic County; we're working with Newark as far as any
surplus we get. We share with all of the other agencies.

MR. GROVE: Ellen, I want to express a personal note of
thanks to you for helping to coordinate today, making it possible for
us to have the hearing here, taking care of the scheduling, and so on.
That was particularly helpful to us. Thank you very much.

MS. WARD: You're welcome.

MR. GROVE: May we have Mr. James Johnson, please?

JAMES R. JOHNSON: Good afternoon. My name is James Johnson. 1 am the
Program Monitor for the Camden County Uffice on Aging right here in the

County.
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While I cannot say there is no hunger in Camden County, I can
say that there is no need for anyone in Camden County to be hungry.
Many tons of food are distributed and millions of dollars of food
stamps are allocated to the needy of the County. Though there is
nothing we can do to increase the amount of food stamp dollars
available in Camden County, we can increase the amount of free food
available to people.

Last year, the Gleaners Program made over 8U,000 pounds of
fruits and vegetables available in Camden County. This was done with
only a minimum amount of help on the part of Camden County's social
service agencies. If more people had gotten involved and been more
flexible in their outlook, these figures could have been doubled or
even tripled. The attached article -- which you all have -- from the

August 12 edition of The Philadelphia Inquirer gives a more detailed

explanation of the program and how it worked.

In conclusion I can only say that it is time we put the needs
of others ahead of our own and to work to help them and not ourselves.
Thank you.

MR. GROVE: Give us a moment to digest; that came rather
quickly.

Mik. JUHNSON: Sorry.

MR. GROVE: That's okay. Are there any questions?

MR. STuBBS: 1 have one.

MR. GROVE: Go ahead.

MR. STUBBS: Mr. Johnson, you say others should have made
themselves available to the resources.

MR. JOANSON: No, sir, help us to get the resources.

MR. STUBBS: O0Oh, help you to get the resources.

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, sir. I saw a five-acre field of cabbage
rot because we couldn't get people down there to pick it and bring it
back to the people in Camden City and Camden County. It didn't make
any difference to that farmer. He just wanted to get it out.

MR. STUBBS: You couldn't get people to deliver the goods?

MR. JUHNSON: I couldn't get people to pick it or to deliver
it, either one.

MR. STUBBS: ALl right. Now, is it too late?
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MR. JOHNSON: No, sir, the season is starting again.

MR. STUBBS: Pardon?

MR. JOHNSON: The season is starting again. We can get
started now.

MR. STUBBS: So what you're saying is, what shquld have been
done, though it was not, can still be done effectively?

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, sir.

MR. STUBBS: Can you tell us how?

MR. JOHNSON: Possibly. As I said, the problem we have is
that the rfarmers call us up the day before and say, "Look, we're
finished picking. I have 'X' number of acres available of such and
such a crop," whether it's corn, cabbage, tomatoes, or whatever. And
we have to be down there the next morning around seven o'clock to get
started. Anyone who has ever done any work on a farm knows that
you don't pick crops in the heat of the day. You have to get there
early in the morning and get finished. 1 would leave my home somewhere
around seven o'clock in the morning; I would be down there a little
after eight, at the latest; and I would be back dropping off the foou
to the various organizations and agencies by 11:3U or 12 o'clock.

MR. STUBBS: If people were to do that, could they be
compensated for their services?

MR. JOHNSON: It would depend on who they were working for.
I worked for the County and I did get my pay. I was being paid
regardless of what I was doing, plus my mileage expenses. Uther people
-- yes. It is up to the agency they are working for. A lot of tne
agencies said, "Well, we can't spare anyone. We can't do this." 1 had
a couple of agencies which, toward the end, really helped out a lot. I
don't want to run them down.

The thing is, people weren't saying, "Look, we'll stop doing
the paperwork today, and we'll go down and get the food." They were
too busy doing paperwork.

MR. STUBBS: Thank you.

MR. GROVE: So you're suggesting tnat the community agencies,
the government agencies, and so on, that you are a part of -- if they

would just close shop for a couple of days when the calls came in, you
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could put enough food on the streets of Camden County for a period of
time, at least through the emergency food proyrams and others, to make
quite a difference.

MR. JOHNSON: That is correct. I had 1U acres of corn rot,
as well as the cabbage, last year. It could not be picked.

MR. GROVE: You are asking the Commission to at least make a
recommendat ion that agencies be freed up to close, take their staffs,
and go into the fields, as it were? '

MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, sir. I had a member of the Board of
Social Services who was able to come out for one day. His boss allowed
him to come to help us. All summer long he was only able to get away
for a half a day one day.

MR. STUBBS: Could someone call you, Mr. Johnson, for furtner
information?

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, sir.

MR. STUBBS: What is your numper?

MR. JOHNSUN: My number is Area Code 6uUY9, 933-117U. That is
the nuibsr for tne County uffice on Aging.

MR. STUBBS: Okay.

MR. JOHANSUN: Thank you very much.

MR. GRUVE: Let me ask you another question. what would
happen if that was coordinated through some of the emergency food
programs in Camden and Burlington Counties, if there was a network of
volunteers who woula be willing to go into the fields to do that kind
of thing? Would that be appropriate, or should tnis all pe agency
done?

" MR, JUHNSON: That would pe beautiful if we coula ao it,
sir. If we could get enough volunteers working through the agencies
to set up some sort of a network system, it would be the best thing we
could have. It would be an ideal solution to the problem.

MR. GRUVE: Are there any other questions? (no response)
Thank you very much, un, you have to wait, Jim; thers 1is another
question.

MS. RUSS: I was a little siow, but I do have one question.
Your affiliation is the Uffice on Aging”?

MR. JOHANSUN:  Yes, 1t is,



MS. ROSS: Can you respond to some of the questions we had
earlier concerning Meals on Wheels?

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, I can.

MS. ROSS: Une speaker before you spoke about the need for
expansion of the Meals on Wheels Program because there are many
unserved home-bound elderly people in need of this kind of service.
Can you respond to that in any way?

. MR. JOHNSON: Uur Meals on Wheels Program in Camden County is
based on a volunteer system of delivery. We only have one paid driver
out of the fund. We have money in the budget for enough meals to cover
everyone, if we can get the volunteers to deliver the meals.
Currently, we are delivering 250 meals a day; we have the capaoility of
delivering 5UU meals a day. We only have waiting lists in tnose towns
where the people do not want to help their own neighbors by
volunteering to deliver a meal.

MR. GROVE: Are you connected in any way witn the voluntary
agencies? 1 mean, do you know Wolfgang, do you know Ellen, do you know
tne people who have been--

MR. JUHNSON: I have worked very closely witn Ellen ward,
Helen Walters of the Food Shelf, and some people who are not here
today.

MR, GROVE: So you are connected with those folks?

MR. JOHNSUN: Yes, I am.

MR. GROVE: Ukay. Thank you very much. HFay we have Mr. Jonhn
Scanlon, please? s ™r. Scanlon nere? (no response) Sister rarge
Sullivan?

SISTER MARGE SULLIVAN: 1 am Sister Marge Sullivan. 1 an & social
worker in the Sacred Heart Parish in South Camden.

MR. GROVE: Will you please spell your name?

SISTER MARGE SULLIVAN: Sure, it's S-U-L-L-I-V-A-n, The
parish I am affiliated witn distributes emergency food from the
twentieth to tne thirtieth of each month. Approximately 5u bags of
food are prepared aaily, generally enough for a three-to-four-day
supply. In the foods we distribute, we do not distrioute meats,

poultry, dairy products -- any sort of perisnaole fooas.
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When I first arrived at Sacred Heart in the Fall of 1979, I
found that at Sacred Heart, food was distributed throughout the month
to anyone to came to the door who was neédy. As the years progressed,
the demand far exceeded the supply. Our food is provided through
parishioners who bring it to Mass on Sundays.

I did not anticipate testifying today, but when I looked
around 1 saw that quite a few people were not here -- the people who
are really hungry. I am not hungry. When I woke up tnis morning I
could have coffee, and when I go home tonight I can have a meal. 50 1
am not hungry. I was disturbed with the people who are very hungry,
those who stand in line down at Sacred Heart, because they were not
here. Then I began to think. Coming before you to testify can be
somewhat intimidating, but at the same time, I think it kind of
nurtures a sense of powerlessness that the poor feel. If I were a poor
person and I was without food, and I had a choice between testifying in
the City Council Chambers or standing in line at Sacred Heart for a pay
of food, the answer is obvious. 1 would not be at the City Council
Chambers.

This is not tangible evidence in terms of survival. To stand
here -- I can't put this on my table and go home to feea my kids
tonight. Tnis is probably why the poor are not here, and tnere are
various and sundry other reasons.

What I suggest is that the poor will not come to you. You
need to go to the poor; you need to go to the hungry. I bpelieve
speakers before me said there are congregate feeding sites in tnis
City, and in many of the places you will go in the State or New
Jersey. Uon't wait for the poor to come to you. Uwon't wait for tne
hungry to come to testify. You will have a long, long wait. Go out
and make yourselves available at the feeding sites, and find out wnat
people have to say about why they need to wait in line for a bag of
food.

I suggest tnat no one finds it a joyous, happv occasion to
stand in line and ask for a bag of food. [ arrive at work in tne
morning at approximately eight o'clock. We don't start distributing

any sort of emergency food until ten o'clock. un tne cclcest of tne
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coldest days, 20 to 25 people are already in line at eight o'clock in
the morning, because they know that at a certain point we run out of
food and have to turn people away. Unless he is really hungry, no one
wants to subject himself to that kind of a situation.

I would also like to suggest that the people I know in South
Camden are doing a superb job of budgeting, but you can only budget
what you have.

The reason 1 was late today was bécause a woman came to my
office. She told me that on Saturday night, she became ill and had to
go to the hospital. On botn sides of her there are abandoned houses,
and her house was empty. While she was gone, someone ‘entered the
abandoned house next-door to her, came in through the dropped ceiling
in her house, and robbed her. They cleaned out her freezer. They
stole her meat and they cleaned out her refrigerator. ©Sne budgets.
She takes her food stamps at the beginning of each month and puts thea
all out for food. So she does budget her money.

Education is important. I am an educator ana I know the
value of it. But [ would suggest that the people in the tity who asx
for bags of food are not there because they haven't pudgeted. Tney are
there because they have budgeted and, in fact, can only stretch their
money so far. I would like to clear up tnat misconception. I tnink
that is a middle-class and upper middle-class misconception we have.
"If you really budget your money, you can make it last to tne end of
the month."

The other point I would like to suggest is, employment 1s
fine, if you can find a job. uftentimes you fina a Job -- and this
very woman 1is a perfect example. she found a job, a day here anid
a day there. So what she did -- as every person is supposed to do --
was report it to welfare. Wnen she reported it to welfare, somehaw the
computer didn't catch up with her. So when it came toc the beginninyg of
the month, her food stamps didn't arrive. If you call, what they tell
you is, "I'm very sorry, but the computer didn't catcn up." So shs
needed to wait and she had to maxe some decisions. ULoes she pay her
rent or does she feed her family? That is why a lot of the poor an:

the hungry are not here today, because tney are tired of making tnos=



kinds of decisions. They just don't have the psychological or physical
energy.

So I would suggest as a bottom line, don't wait for the poor
to come to you. Go out to them wherever you can. Thank you.

MR. GROVE: Sister, I think it would be appropriate for me to
respond to what you're saying. First of all, I appreciate your
testimony. Secondly, we have attempted to make the hearings do
precisely that. The afternoon parts of our hearings are in public
places like city halls, hospitals, and so on. The evening parts of our
hearings have been set up to go to the places where the people are. We
will be at Leaven House this evening for two hours. To our knowledge,
there still isn't anyone planning to be there to give testimony. No
one has contacted us one way or the other. We will still be there.

I really encourage you, and anyone else who is in this room
today, to go home and find some folks who are in your lines, or who
have been in your lines, and make sure they are there this evening to
talk to us. We can't do any more than keep trying to go where the
people are, as well as where the agencies are. Tnat has been our
objective in holding daytime and evening hearings, instead of starting
at ten o'clock in the morning and going until four o'clock in the
afternoon, and holding tnem all in public builaings where people siaply
will not come.

We have been sensitive to that. It hasn't paid off for us at
the two hearings we have held so far, but 1 want you to be aware that
we are sensitive to tnat and are trying in some way to remedy it. If
you can help us to do it differently or better, I am willing to listen
to you; I am willing to work at it.

SISTER MARGE SULLIVAN: Finej; thank you.

MR. GRUVE: Are there any questions?

MR. FOru: You've got a hand in the back.

FROM AUDIENCE: May I say a word?

MR. GRUVE: Sure. Will you please come up to the witnsss
table and state your name?

PRISCILLA KIRK: My name is Priscilla Kirk. I work at Leaven douse.

At the beginning of the month, we serve food to petween bSu and Tu.
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people. By the end of the month, we serve between 30U and 4U0 people.
These people are hungry, and a lot of times we have to turn them out
because we just don't have enough food to feed them.

I'm sure there will be a whole lot of hungry people at your
hearing tonight to meet you, because these people are really hungry.
We need food there. Sometimes we miscount. There could be about >uu
or 600 people there, but we don't know because we're so busy. And we
run out of food; we don't have enough food for these people. So I'm
sure you are going to see quite a few hungry people tonight because it
was announced today.

MR. GRUVE: Thank you, Priscilla.

MS. KIRK: You're welcome.

MR. GRUVE: Sister (speaking to previous witness), I didn't
mean to respond to you in such a way that you would think we didn't
hear what you said. I just wanted you to understand what we have gone
through in attempting to meet what you are requesting. Tnere is sone
question about whether or not we have done it well, but at least we are
working at 1it.

May we have Jacqueline Collins-Parker next, please?  John
Scanlon, you wiil be next on the docket.

JACQUELINE COLLINS-PARKER: Hi.

MR. GROVE: Hi.

MS. COLLINS-PARKER: My name is Jacqueline Collins-Parker. [
am a staff person for the Camden Shelter Coalition. I am also s
full-time student at Rutgers University in Camden.

I take exception to the fact that the poor are said to oe
unable to budget, specifically because 1 just came off welfare last
spring. I had two children at home, and I was still going to nursing
school at that time.

I received a check for $36u.UU a montnh to pay all of my
bills, and $155.0U in food stamps. My mortgage was »247.Ud. My
electric had been off for two years because I couldn't pay Punlic
Service. GLas and water came to apbout $5U.UU a montn. Kerasene to neet
the house was about $25.0uU a month. Tnat left me about pouU.UU to bDuy

clothing, snoes, and nonnecessities, like toothpaste ana toilel paper.



You know, you can't buy those things with food stamps. I figure the
food stamps come to $38.75 a week, to feed a family of three. That's
two growing children. I learned from my mother how to make soups and
stews out of pig tails, pig ears, and things like that -- things that
are real cheap. You put beans with them, but tne problem is, you get
no calcium from those things. You don't get Vitamin B or Vitamin A
from non-green things.

I come from a nursing school; 1 know what has been missing.
I have a 13-year-old who is said to be anemic now because of that kind
of diet; but they had to eat. We were full; it kept us going, but it
didn't keep us healthy. I don't know what is going to happen with them
as they get older. You know, what is going to happen with their bones?

What I did a lot was go to Good Samaritan. Tnat is part of
the reason I have the job that 1 have. People know me from going bacx
and forth to centers. You have to have something to supplement your
food stamps. That is the only way you can make it. You can't turn
your nose up at canned goods. You eat what you have. Sometimes what
is donated, especially towara the ena of the month, might be wihite
potatoes. We're still talking about starch. There still isn't
anything that the kids need.

I have a part-time job now, and I am a full-time student. 1
make $220.00 every two weeks. I still have to pay the same o0ills on
that $220.00 every two weeks. It isn't too much petter. My kids are
older, they're grown, put I still have to make it too.

One of iy other concerns is, you're saying that maybe
homeless people won't appear at hearings. I think it is very
intimidating to speak at a hearing. I think you can tell I nave the
shakes standing in front of you, and compared to other people, 1'in in
pretty good shape as far as economics are concerned. But I'm nervous.
I don't think you are going to get people out by saying "hearings;" I
think you are going to have to go out as inaiviauals, maype, ana say,
"Look, I'm here. I want to know what you have to say. 1 want to know
how you're making it. How do you feel about tnings? row do you tnirw
we can make it better?" VYou have to try to get across to tnem tnal you
mean 1t tnis time, thst you are not nanding tnem a crock of crey

again. They're not going to listen; tney're nat going to come ou'.
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If you go to the shelters and go in, not as a Hunger
Commission, but as individuals -~ as just people-- Lo someplace and
have a meal. Dress down for a change and go into a shelter overnight
to see what it is really like. You can't find out from standing
outside. You'll never be as poor, maybe, as we were. You'll never be
that down, maybe, if everything goes all right for you. You don't know
what is going to happen; you may never be that way. But you can't tell
wﬁat is really going on by standing on the outside looking in.

Most of us who have come here today are making it. We can
only tell you what we feel, what we have been through before. Put on
your jeans and a raggedy T-shirt or raggedy sweat shirt and go into the
shelters. Go in and have lunch at one of the soup kitchens. Sit
down. Don't even say who you are for awhile. Find out what it is
really like.

Thank you. Are there any questions? (negative response)

MR. GRUVE: Thank you. John Scanlon? John, we're asking
people to give their names, spell their names, give tne organization
they are part of, and whsat their position in the organization is. You
have ten minutes to share your thoughts with us and then we would like
to have an opportunity to ask guestions.

JOHN SCANLON: Sure thing. iy name is Jonn Scanlon. I am with tne
Cathedral Kitchen, which is a feeding program in Camden. 1 have a
sheet here. iMay I share that also?

MR. GRUVE: Sure.

MR. SCANLON:  QOur organization has been in existence since
1976. I am kind of proud of the people in soutnern New Jersey and tne
amount of generosity they have shown to our program, and ! would like
to share that with you.

We are located at the Cathedral of the Immaculate Conception,
which 1is right down the street here. We are sponsored by the St.
Vincent dePaul Society, which 1is a Roman Catholic organization. whet
we have going for us is that we have 25 cnurch groups. Tnese are
mostly Catholic parishes, but tnere are some Protestant grouus, sor:

Baptist groups, and sowe other groups.
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What the folks in these 23 groups do is, on a monthly basis,
they prepare casseroles, which we then use in our soup kitchen. On the
average, or close to the average, we get 500 casseroles per month.
This 1is true generosity on the part of the people because beef
casseroles have to cost between $5.00 and $10.00 to make, and it takes
time. People are willing to do it.

We have 40 volunteer servers, or numbers to that effect, and
we have to have one person who shows up every day, who is the paid
chef. We get the casseroles donated. We get soup donated from the
Campbell Soup Company. We get bread donated from two local
organizations. One is called the Breadbasket, which is in Cherry
Hill. The other one is a bakery in Pitman. I'm not tooc sure whether
those two organizations wanted their names mentioned, but they are very
generous to us also. Tea and sugar are donated.

We serve evening meals. We serve in the neighborhood of
2,200 to 2,300 people each month. As I said, we are located at the
Cathedral of the Immaculate Conception, in the school cafeteria.
serve weekday evenings; we do not serve on Saturdays and Sundays. We
serve from 6:00 to 6:45., Why do we do this? Well, first of all, let's
face it, one of the reasons we are out here is because we really never
know when we might need this ourselves. Some of us here do not
necessarily need it today, but you just never know.

So, we provide meals to those who need them. We ask no
questions. When I was growing wup, 1 must admit that the one
organization I truly admired was the Salvation Army, because I felt
they asked no questions; they just helped people. This is related to
our church; it is the same sort of thing. We just want to help people.

The second reason we do it, of course, is to act as a vehicle
for Christian witness. We have 500 families in southern New Jersey
who, because I believe they read the Bible, say they should help people
out. They do this on a monthly basis. We have 40 individuals on a
daily basis -~ a once-a-week basis ~-- who come in to help serve for a
couple of hours, and we have all sorts of other people helping.

I guess one thing I am proud of is, our organization, as I

say, has becen in existence since 1976. We have moved tne organizalio:
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around a little bit. We have had help from a number of organizations
in Camden, including the Volunteers of America. There was a time when
we had no place to go, and tnhe Volunteers took us in. We are very
happy to be back in the church environment now, but I just have to tip
my hat to Reverend Dudley and the people in the Volunteers of America
for all the help they have given us.

Another thing I am particularly proud of is that this is a
volunteer organization. It is somewhat of a people-to-people
organization, in that we have people from southern New Jersey coming
into Camden, talking to people, and hopefully making a cheery setting
for them as they have their supper. Because it 1is a volunteer
organization -- you know, we don't pay for this cafeteria; they just
let us stay there to do our tning. Our total expenses for paper
supplies, salaries, and dumpster fees -- and the expenses are pretty
much in that order -- are in the neighborhood of »1,00u a month. So
far we have had no trouble raising %1,UUU a montn. It just kind of
comes in. Again, because of the nature of our organization, the
approximate meal cost is .50 a meal.

I think one of the most important things -- and the previous
speaker alluded to this -~ 1is, we have to get people interacting with
each otner, not just the people in Camden, but we have to come together
at least in southern iew Jersey -- the people in Camaden County.

That is my statement.

MR. GROVE: Are you feeding families, John, or are ycou
feeding largely single people?

MR. SCAnNLUN:  Largely single people. 1 woulag say that at
least 8U% are single people.

MR. GRUVE: So you're not seeing families or children?

M. SCANLUN: Well, first of all we can only serve families.
Every once in awhile we have trouble with cnildren coming in, but there
is just no way we can serve unattenaed cnildren. It just isn't tne
thing to do. But it isn't so much families tnat we serve; it's mostly
single people.

MR. GRJIVE: Woula you guaess tnat the people you're s2rving

are largely homeless people, or people who are coming to you pecauc:
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they have used their monthly supplement or money to stay in a home and
they have no money for food?

MR. SCANLON: Well, let me put it this way, on average we
serve 109 people. Toward the end of the month, it is 130, so obviously
at the beginning of the montn it's less. I don't know; that probably
answers your question.

MR. GROVE: Well, what we keep running across is the fact
that the money runs out by about the fifteenth to the twentieth of the
month, and then everyone starts showing up at the feedinyg places toward
the end of the month.

MR. SCANLUN: That's typical.

MR. GROVE: What we have heard across the board is that there
just seems to be enough for about 15 to 20 days of the month, and then
the last 10 to 15 days of the month people begin to ask for nelp. Then
they start over again the first of tne month with their checks, and
then start to come in for help again.

MR. SCANLOUN: Yes, there are certainly many more toward the
ena of the month than at the beginning of the month.

MR. GRUVE: Please don't near me saying that people don't
know how to budget their money. Hear me saying that tne money 1is
running out.

MS. COLLINS-PARKER: It runs out about the tenth.

MR. GRUVE: Yes, that is what I'm hearing. Yes?

MS. BEATTY (speaking from audience; difficult for transcriper
to hear): I just want to say that 1 agree witn him to a large extent.
I have a 27-year-old child who lives in New York. 1 have been a widow
for 12 vyears. When I first came to wew Jersey, I went to tne
Volunteers of America for help, but I nad to go to lir. Wolfgang to get
clothes and things for myself and my son. He is 47 years old, but I
still support him off of my Social Security check. My sister-in-law
gives me my clothes because she has a job. I don't work. (Remainer of
statement lost completely pecause bs. Beatty was far out in audience,
away from microphonz.;

MR, GRUVZ: Thank you. Jos, any questions?

MR. FUORJ: No, tnank you.



MR. GRUVE: John (speaking to Mr. Scanlon), thank you very
much. Is there anyone else who would like to share with us? (negyative
response)

The hearing for this afternoon is now closed. We will be
back in session again at Leaven House this evening, between 6:3U and

8:30. Thank you very much for being with us.
(END OF AFTERNUON SESSIUN)
EVENING SESSIUN

DONNA CUHEN RUOSS (Acting Chairperson): we are going to start
the evening session of the hearing now. We will be as informal as we
can, but there are certain formalities we must cover first.

This is a hearing before the New Jersey Commission on
Hunger. The Commission was appointed by UGLovernor Kean and the
Legislature to examine the extent of hunger througnout wnNew Jersey, and
to try to deterwine the causes of nunger; also, to formulate some
concrete recommendations which we can bring to the GLovernor and tne
Legislature for action. we have eignt hearings scheauled around the
State. Today in Camden is our tnird hearing. We were at Camden City
Hall this afternoon, and we're here at Leaven House this evening.

My name is Donna Ross. 1 am a member of the Commission. I
an representing the Newark Prescnool Council, whicn is a head start
organization in Newark, New Jersey. To my right is Margaret dart, the
designee for Assemblyman bavid Schwartz of iiddlesex County, who is
also a memper of the Commission. To Margaret's right is Joe Fora,
representing Bread for the Worla.

We would like to take testimony this evening from anyone who
would like to speak about hunger. Again, one of the formalities we
must go through is to tell you tnat the microphones here are set up for
people who would like to speak. tverything 1is being recorded, to oe
transcribed and tnen used in the permanent recoras of tne Commission.
1f you would like to stand up to give testimony, you may; otherwise, |
think we figured that tnesec front seats are certainly close enougn tu
the microphones to pick up testimon,. 52, peoplie can 43 what tney fec!

most comfortable with.
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Before you speak, please tell us your name, spell your name

for the benefit of the record, and give us the name of the organization
you represent, or, if you are just representing yourself, please state
that also. We do not have a list of people, so we will Just take
people as they wish to speak. Would anyone like to start off?
CATHY SUGDEN: I have a couple of things here. My name 1is Cathy
Sugden. I am a co-coordinator of Leaven House, where you are right
now. We serve approximately 125 people a day at the beginning of the
month, and we serve about 350 to 375 a day at the end of the month.
This clearly shows how food stémps and people's money do not hold out
for a month.

We see about 145 to 150 people who are the core group of
Leaven House. If we don't see them for a couple of days, we miss
them. The other people who come throughout the ena of the month are
people who are really trying to make it by maxking their food stamps
stretch. I think we provide a service for those people.

lle see a lot of men -- black, wnite, and Hispanic. We se=2
women and children toward the end of the month, and we see many
children when there is no school -- Saturdays, Sundays, and other
days. We do all of this witn volunteers from the neighborhood; we ds
this without paying any salaries. We do it with donations of food from
churches, schools, and individuals. Many of the people you see sitting
here are volunteers at Leaven House. We also receive subsidies from
the government. Every otiher month we go to Vinelana to pick up
cheeses, macaroni, spaghetti, and other things.

Clearly the lack of food, I believe, is not the cause of
hunger because there are billions of tons of food sittiny in caves 1n
Kansas City. We can put out a call for food at any time and we can get
~ it from all of our supporters. Basically, and as it is statea in
"Hunger in America'"-- I am going to quote this so that I don't sav it
incorectly: "Tne recent and swift return of nunger to America can pe
traced, in substaniial measdre, to the clear and conscious policies of
the Federal government." We see it rignt hers in Camden, wherz people
have been cut off from tneir food stamps. The WIL Progran has odeen
cuty scnool lunches have bpesnn cut. 50 it clesrly naz & cirsci

relationship.
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When talking to some of the people yesterday about this
program tonight, basically people would not be here if they had jobs.
People don't like walking into a place like Leaven House. We try to do
it with as much dignity as we possibly can to hold the place together
in some kind of order. There are not that many rules, and people help
each other. But people don't like walking into these places. So, I
can't believe there is an extreme amount of misuse, or tnat people just
come in for a free meal. |

We talked yesterday, too, with a group of people who received
food here, who said that if they had jobs, they wouldn't be here. Many
people who work in the kitchen are migrant workers, people who did not
make enough money during the last picking season to get unemployment
this season, through the winter. Tney are looking forward to the
beginning of April, when they will return to the fields to make inore
money . There are hard-working people here. They want to work.
Dignity is part of the rights we owe them.

First of all, 1 would like toc sez a temporary measure tnal
would restore the money, or put it back into the programs that are
already maintaining people, to help them to get on their feet. we
don't help people to get on their feet with these programs the
government is giving out.

The other thing is, people need jobs. We have people in hign
places, people in authority here in Camden, who have not done tneir
jobs to negotiate for jobs for the people in Camden. We have seen 3uUJ
jobs go to workers for the prison, and maybe /5 of the workers came
from Camden. We have seen jobs go to the people who are working in the
transportation terminal downtown in Camden, but the jobs did not go to
residents of Camden. We have construction going on in center City; we
have construction going on in other parts of tne City, but the jobs do
not go te City residents. We have people in the Fire Uepartment and
the Police vepartment, and workers in City government, but the jobs in
those places are not given to City residents.

I gust think we ought to be doing sometning about Joos.

MS. RUSs: The way we would like to use this time is to give

the witnessez a cnance to speax, anc then, 1f 11 1s owav, we wouls iior

[©)]
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to have an opportunity to ask questions to follow up on some of the
things which are said. Joe?

MR. FORD: I'm thinking.

MS. RUOSS: I have several questions; some of them are just to
clarify some of the things you said. I am particularly concerned about
children. You mentioned in your statement just now that children come
in more on weekends or during times when they are out of school, which
indicates to me that when they are in school, quite possiply they are
eating in school, but when tnere is no school, they don't eat.

Do vyou know of children who, because of changes in
eligibility for school meals, used to get free meals ana are now
required to pay? Is that a problem you have experienced?

MS. SUWDEN: I can't document that. We have seen an increase
in the number of people who come here to Leaven House. We keep a
count of tne approximate number of people who come every day on a
calendar in the kitchen, and we keep track of that through the year
Jjust for our own personsl records. Las* vear we served approxinatel:
48,00U meals. That was 19¢3. In 1984, we served 65,UUU0 meals. 5o
there was almost a 2U,0UG-meal increase. Many of tne people served
were children. Who they were, I don't know, but that increase was
there.

1 work in a day-care center in South Camden on a part-time
basis. In keeping’track of all the State records you need to keep
track of for food eligibility, and whether they are paid in part, in
full, or are free, these meals have increased because of the changes in
the legislation. That's Camden. I mean, I know that.

MS. RUSs: Wnich part of it has increasea, the numoer of
children who are no longer considered eligiple for fres lunches?

MS. SuuLEn: For free, yes.

MS. RUSS: Do you know whether or not breakfast is available
to Camden City school children?

MS. SULDEN:  Yes, 1t 1s, but woo gets it ang who pays for it
are different. It is available. There is cereal--

MS. RuSS:  Ukay.



MR. FORD: In New Brunswick last week, someone testified that
social workers are now allowed to take up to 31 days -- I think that
was the figure--

MS. ROSS: Thirty days.

MR. FUORD: Thirty days to do the paperwork for people in need
of emergency food.

MS. RUSS: Emergency food stamps.

MR. FORD: Emergency food stamps; I'm sorry. Have you had
that experience locally, where social workers, those in responsibility,
are just sitting on the paperwork? If so, what has been your
approach? How have you tried to deal with it?

MS. SUGDEN: With the time lapse between getting--

Mrn. FORD: Yes. If someone is hungry today and is told to
get emergency food stamps, they have to wait up to 3U days.

MS. SUuUEN: That has been great. we experience that all tne
time. People come in and say, "I didn't get my food stamps this
month." There was terrific confusion over the March food stamps. A
lot of people did not get them. We saw hardly any kind of a arop in
the number of people who came at the end of fFebruary and the peginning
of March.

Basically, they go up to ouB Market 3treet. we Jjust make
sure that people know where all of the resources are and where they can
get bags of food. We just make sure that people know they can get nelp
at a time like tnat. That has peen a big thing. They said it was &
computer mistake.

MS. ROSS: I think someone alluded to that at our hearing
tnis afternoon.

MS. SUGDEN: Basically we just make sure that people know.
We have a list of where all the feeding aygencies are, where they can
get meals.

MR, FORD: Are you associated =-- formally or informally
connected with other organizations similar to Leaven House?

MS. SUGDEN: Yes. Leaven touse 1is connected with tne
Religious Food Coszlition, which ygrew out of coordinating tne feeding

operations in tne City. There are 171 places, ana tnree on-site feeain.
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places. (Much of what Ms. Sugogen was saying was lost to the
transcriber. Apparently she was standing away from the microphone; she
could have been picked up much more clearly if she had been sitting
directly in front of a micropnone.)

The Religious Food Coalition met frequently the first couple
of years it was together, but now it meets occasionally, every thira
montn or sometning like that. It is not as heavy because we actually
understand how people are working. We are affiliated with them, but no
church organization specifically.

MS. ROSS: I have one more question. You mentioned that some
of the people who volunteer here or who come here -- when tney are
working, they are working as migrant farm laborers.

MS. SUGUEN: Many.,

MS. ROSS: Okay. Do you know whether or not they have any
particular problems witn food stamps or Wil pecause of tneir status as
migrant workers? Are they experiencing any particular problems because
of the nature of tneir work?

MS. SUGDEN: There are about four or five guys who have been
here pretty steadily for the past three months. They help us in tne
kitchen. They are on municipal welfarej; they have been able to hook up
with that.

MS. RUSS: Okay. Thank you.

Would anyone else like to speak?

FATHER JESUS CALVO: My name is Jesus Calvo. [ am from Spain. I was
born there and lived there for 22 years. Afterward, I was in India for
30 years. I came here to the States in 1981. I spent one year in
Philadelphia, and then I came here to Holy Name Parish in Nortn Camaen,
where I have lived for two years.

I work in Catholic missions. I work mostly witn tne
Hispanics of the locality.

MR, FORD: Pardon me, Ffatner, woula you please spell your
last name?

FATHER CALVO:  C-A-L-V-u., By tne way, you adon't know tne

meaning. It means bullneaded. (laughter) It fits very well too.
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I have been working especially during the last two years with
Hispanics. Some people have been here for many years. It is not a
late wave of people who have just come here. However, some people are
coming regularly from Puerto Rico and from other places. Most of the
people would like to work. They come here to find work. Uftentimes,
they do not find work -- maybe because they are latecomers, maybe
because they do not know English well, maybe because there is some kind
of discrimination. They speak Spanish; therefore, get out. It happens
this way in some places.

They would like to get jobs because charity, to ask for food,
is something shameful. I think with the Hispanic community, there is a
little pride, too. Sometimes you imagine that Hispanics are people
without pride. They ask for anytning. But we do have pride, and we
don't like to beg at &sll. There are people who would like to be doing
much better, doing good work, doing a Jjob, so they would pbe able to
feed themselves.

Now, is there a toilet in tne place? No one likes tnat, to
begin with. The poverty of India is quite different from the poverty
we have here. There is definitely much need. People who work day by
day would like to help. They would like to nelp us to live a decent
life like a decent human being.

Some people find proolems witn clothing; some people find
problems with food and eating; many find proplems in getting a decent
house. I have visited about 55U homes here in the last two years. 1
spent approximately a half an nour to an hour with each family. You
can see that they are in mucn need of many things. There is never much
furniture in the homes.

So, there is a need for food; there is a need for housing;
sometimes tnere is a need for clotning. Many people woula like to
help. I don't think that is simply to show that they think they are
different. There is a large amount of agencies which provide tnese
needs. There are food stamps; there is unemployment. A lot of people
do get money at the peyinning of tne montn if the, had been emplaoyved.
Then there is welfare for tne ladies with many cnildren. So there is

much help.
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But it 1is not enough. Many times it happens that by the
middle of the month and the end of the month, they do not have enough
food. Some places serve lunch and dinner, and people go there. There
are also some private institutions -- churches and so on -- that give
some kinds of baskets of food to people in need. But I think there is
still much need for food, housing, and clothing.

MS. RO5S: Thank you. Does anyone have any questions?

MS. HART: I have a question. You say that no one dies of
hunger, but do you see many newborn babies who maybe are sickly because
they are born not weighing enough, or, you know, they are not getting
the right nutrition while the motner is pregnant? Do you see that
personally?

FATHER CALVO: I am already biased because I have seen much
worse things than I see here. I have never seen a child who is not
eating.

MS. HART: Yes. You're comparing the United States to India,
but-- 7

FATHER CALVU: As I said, I am a little bit biased pecause 1
have seen much worse. I know many families, some young mothers, who
would like to feea their children a little bit vetter than tney do,
definitely. Tnere are a couple of them who come to our place to get
some kind of food. They come mostly to get sometning for their bavies.

So, there are definitely some families -- a few ladies -- who
would like to feed their children much better.

MS. HarT: But, do you see sick children, or children who,
maybe after tnhey are born, may have to stay in the hospital longer than
usual because they wers born so small?

FATHER CALVO: Usually, I do not see that, and I also visit
hospitals. Some children are born physically hanaicapped, but you

cannot help it, no? Un account of a lack of nutrition, no, that I do

not see.

M5, RUSS:  Joe?

Mice FULCT Ao than you.

MS. RUSS: Ukay. Tnank you. Would anyone elss like to
spealk?
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MARGARET HERZ-LANE: My name is Margaret Herz-Lane. I am Associate
Pastor at the Camden Lutheran Parish.

There are a couple of areas which come to my mind when I
think about hunger. The people who spoke before mentioned that one is
what happens in the middle of the month when people start to run out of
food. We in the church office see a lot of people coming to the door
asking for food. In some cases maybe it is the same two or tnree
people, who we know by the seventeentn or the twentietn of the month
will be around asking for food. We sort of have a regular pattern of
giving. In our case we can give them a letter and send them to the
Good Samaritan.

Then there are the families who show up on the weekends, some
of whom we have never seen. They come to the door of the pastor's
house because they know the pastor lives in the neighborhood. Tnat
happens. dJsually it is always at the end of thne monthn. It is very
seldom that we see anyone asking for food before the fifteenth of the
month.

Another thing I have experienced, which you mentioned, is the
problem of getting food stamps when there is a problem at the Welfare
Department. One of the families in our parish recently went tnrough
that. They went to the welfare office repeatedly, where they were
told, "Yes, the paperwork is being done, but you will just nave to
wait." They went for about a month and a half, and at that pocint they
were out of food. There were several children in the family. Their
bills were backing up because the money which they would have normally
spent to pay the rent, the heat, and the electric, was now being spent
on food. By the end of the period -- 1 think it was almost two months
-- they were in very bad shape financially. It was all pecause of some
bureaucratic problem with the food stamps.

People live on a shoestring in this community. They don't
have the reserves, as in some communities, to sustain themselves. In
some cases, even a week 1s a problem.

Tz third area 1 get reslly frustralea witnh is the fact tnet
in the whole City of Camden tnere 1is only one supermarket. We only

-

have & Pathmark, whicn is o7 the edae of the Uity. It is not vern



accessible to people in any other section of the City. The majority of
the people in Camden do not have cars. Bus transportation is mediocre,
I would say, and cabs are expensive. So people car pool and everything
else toward the beginning of the month so maypbe they can all get there
to buy food. But toward the middle and the end, when they don't have
the extra money to pool their resources, they are stuck with going to
the corner store, and that is where the prices are the highest.

I remember last year, one of the Senators or representatives
in Washington took food stamps and went shopping. It made me so
angry. I would like to see him take the same amount of money and try
to shop in any of the local stores, and see how much food he would
really have at the end of the month, not to mention the quality of the
food -- the cuts of meat, the quality of the vegetables, and tne
quality of the fresh fruit you buy.

when [ go to a ygrocery store in Cherry Hill, wnen I just
walk into the grocery store and see the difference in what tne food
looks like, and then the lower prices, it inakes me angry. That may not
have anything to do with people starving, but it certainly has to do
with the morality, that people like that Senator--

MS. HART: I think that was the Secretary of Agriculture, or
someone like that, because he was trying to prove that people coula
live on a certain amount of money.

MS., HERZ-LANE: I have some real questions about the quality
of the food. The quality of the fooa you eat has as much to say about
your healtn as anything does. 1It's a challenge. 1 would challenge
him, if it were possible, to come nere to shop. 1 would like to see
how well he could do.

MS. SUGDEN (from audience): And do it for more than a weex.

MS. HART: o you find that the prices are higher at the one
food store in town at the beginning of the month than tney are at the
end of the montin?

MS. HERZ-LAND: by ~confirmation class, 13, 14, ang
1>-year-olds know that tnat is true.

MS. HART: I had another question, but I don't remewmber what
it was.

MS. Kuda:  Uweany.

vl



MS. HART: Do you feel that the City is responding -- the
local government -- in any way? Have they even noticed?

MS. HERZ-LANE: Well, I understand there is going to be a new
grocery store in town. Someone told me that last week. But I don't
know that they made any big effort to keep the Acme in the City. It
closed last year -- I think a year and a half ago. I did not see any
evidence on the part of City government that they were really pushing
hard to get another grocery store in the City. They are gentrifying
the City. The gentry is going to have nice croissant shops ana tea
shops, and the rest of us won't have groceries. 1 have not seen them
making any effort in that way.

MS. ROSS:  So, up until last year there were two grocery
stores in the City?

MS. HERZ-LANE: Could someone tell me when the Acme closed?

MS. SUGODEN: April, 1945.

MS. RUSS: I guess what I am trying to determine is, were
there many grocery stores and now there is just one?

MS. HERZ-LANE: When 1 came to Camden -- July, 1981 -- there
were three grocery stores. Since then there have only been one or two.

M5. ROSS: Thank you. This is a problem we have run across
in other places as well. If people are using bus transportation or a
taxi -- if they are the only available means of transportation -- how
much would you say they're paying to get to the store and to get back
nome?

MS. HERZ-LANE: Well, from North Camden, I think it would pe
at least $5.UU to get to the store.

FRUM AUDIENLE: Ten bucks.

MS. ®0S5: One way?

FRuM AULIENCE: From a person's home to the store, tne taxi
waiting for you, and then coming back =-- »1U.UU. Now, that 1is th=
lowest amount.

MS. RUSS: ukay.

MS. HERZ-LANC: 50, by the middis of tne montin it wouls b
especially difficult to do that. what people do is run up a tab at &
store whicn will give ther credit. Then a! the beginning of tne st
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they pay that off, and they are behind the eightball again before they
get started.

MS. RUSS: Joe?

MR. FORD: Do you know of any efforts the Lutheran Cnhurch is
making ~-- since you are an Associate Pastor of a Lutheran Church -- in
terms of connections or associations with suburban Lutheran parishes to
deal with this problem?

MS. HERZ-LANE: Of hunger specifically in Camden?

MR. FORD: Yes. It seems to me that all of the churches put
together in Center City Camden cannot solve the problem; I mean, as
churches per se. But churches have business people in their
congregations; they have legislators; they have lawyers and doctors.
It seems to me that-- It's an open question in terms of what kind of
networking you're doing to bring about some pressures to alleviate, or
to address some of the problems you've raised.

MS. HERZ-LANE: Well, I think in terms of out and out
charity, the Lutheran congregations, ana many of tne aifferent

denominations, have been very good about bringing food and donating

money .

MR. FuRb: I wasn't talking about that.

MS. HERZ-LANE: Charity is sometning people think they snoulu
do.

MR. FORu: Yes.

MS. HERZ-LANE: Advocacy, on the other hand, is somethiny
people are Just beginning to wunderstand. Tne Lutneran Unurch in

America, the last three to five years, has been much better about
trying to nelp its memoers understana what it means to be an advocate,
rather than a person giving charity. But it's a struggle because
people do not always understand that that is the proper role of tne
Church. They feel very comfortable with giving a can of beans and soue
money, or taking care of someone who is down and out. out they are not
very good at understanding how systems keep people abreast. They are
not really sure whetner or not tneir churcn should do that., As I saig,
it is a slow process. The pastors [ work with understand that, ang
they are struggling witn tneir congreygations, Pastors are oftern ¢

little bit ahead of the people in tne--
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MR. FORD: Would you take the same position that Cathy did in
terms of saying that jobs are needed?

MS. HERZ-LANE: Oh, yes. Sometimes I hate walking around the
neighborhood because people ask me if I know where they can find a
job. I don't have any more access to employment than anyone else
does. But, that is what people want. If you look at this community,
there are all kinds of jobs that could be created just to rebuild the
community, but someone has to invest some money here so we can do
that. What jobs have come into the community nave not gone to the
people who live here.

Job training could have been given to people working on tne
prison, so that when the transportation center was built, there could
have been people who alreaacy knew how to lay pricks or do concrete
work, or something. But there was an effort by the powers that be --
those in City Hall and others -- to see that that didn't nappen. You
know, labor unions were involved. It's a vicious cycle. We cannot
force the unions; union members have to work. It goes round ang round.

MR. FURD: 0Okay, thank you.

MS. ROSS: Thank you. May we have Mance Moore, please?

MANCE MOURE: My name is Mance iMoore. All of the things that have been
said before are gquite true. Tne situstion 1is Just about as they
claimed. Mostly, people dwell on families and kids, which is very
important. But there is a part of Camden's population which people
do not realize is hungry. That population is single persons. The
single person really catches it here because you are looking at an
allotment of $127.00 in money, and %»79.UJ in food stamps.

I'm 28, Take the average male of 45, right? He is payiny at
least $100.0U in rent. Tnat leaves him $Z27.Uu. As as been said, you
never quite catch up with your bills from last montih. So let's say you
owe-- Maybe you borrowed »1U.Uu or »1Z.uUJ, so now that leaves you
$13.00. Then you have your food stamps. Wnhat you are going to do is,

you are going to try tec go to the store, and 1t is interesting tnat you

asked about tnat, [t seems that at tne first of the montn, tne samn
can of Franco-American spaghettl sauce -- whicn 1is usually 3.69 -- 1is
suddenlv %.Y8 in vyour neighborhood store. AE waz §31d, Yyou have

probably run up a tab, so that 1is half of your food stamps rignt there.



What happens is, a person is going to try to spend where they
can get change from the food stamps to take care of whatever their
needs are; for instance, cigarettes, if they smoke, or whatever -- what
we call the basic necessities of life.

So now you are up to the sixteenth or the seveﬁteenth of tne
month. What happens then-- I should have said this in the beginning.
If it weren't for organizations like Leaven House, Good Samaritan, and
other places which have food lines, or soup lines, or whatever they are
called, this City would really be in trouble. If the funas or the
appropriations for these particular places were to be cut or slashed,
you would really have a problem.

As 1 was saying, you are now up to the sixteenth or the
seventeenth of the month. Tnere are a lot of single people who are
eating at these organizations. The lines are starting to get longer
and thne demands for food are increasing, and some of these places run
out of food. It is the single person who is really catching more of
the brunt of tnis situstion., As was sald before, it woula brea< tne
cycle if, in some way, the money that is being spent to feed the hungry
could be diverted to programs to aid unemployment. If people were
employed, you wouldn't have the problem of hunger in Camuen. I am just
going to deal with Camden.

The brunt of the problem is, if a person has a job, he won't
be hungry. If he has the money, he will eat. Tne core of the whole
problem in Camden is the fact that you have a structure tnhat almost
overnight could be turned into a flourishing City, 1if funas were
allowed for it. But for some reason or anctner, it seems tnat funds
are eked out. Tney have a %145 million project. Tney have tnree

projects, but their most recent project is 3125 million; that is the

transportation center. Most of tne people working on the
transportation center are from Vineland, Princeton-- I know a guy --
and this I know personally -- who saia he has to drive 4> minutes to

get to work. He livesz in New Jersey, so you know he must live oa the
other side of tne State. He lives in North Jersey ang ne comes to

South Jersey to work. we're talking about 125 million.
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There is an affirmative action clause which says that 4u% of
the workers are supposed to be Camden residents, and 20% are supposed
to be minorities. I don't see where any of these people, especially
Camden residents, are getting what they are supposed to be getting.

MS. ROSS: Was there any effort made to employ Camden people,
or are you saying there was no effort made at all?

MR. MOORE: Actually, at this .stage of the project-- What
they are saying now is, "We are just getting started. As things go on,
we are going to start employing more people." This is true. In any
construction project, you have a point where there are not as many
people being used; tnat is, at the beginning. But as the foundations
are dug -- and they are being dug now -- and they arrive at a point
where they are going to start pouring concrete and building up, they
say they have a list. But, are the people on the list actually going
to be wused, or is it going to be Jjust like the prison, where tney
brought in people from Bridgeton? There are quite a few Camaen
residents, and the ones tney do use, they shuffle around. Une time st
the prison they were using Local Z22Z2. They they decided they didn't
want to use Local 222, and they went to nonunion labor. All tne
nonunion labor was out of Camden.

Uut and out, they Just don't want to hire anyone from
Camden., I have my own views on why, but it just surprises me that any
City with the vacant housing we have-- 1I'm talking about the abandoned
buildings that are City property. I can't understand why they don't
have a program of rehabilitation tnat would simply break the back of
this cycle we have of being poor. The feeling is, "If you will give me
a job, I'll work." But there are no jobs. We are really very limitea
in what we can do.

MS. RUSS: Are there any questions?

MR. FURD: 1 would just like to say thank you for presenting
a whole picture of what 1s happening nhere. Wnat you're sayiny, Mance,
is the same thing we heara in New Brunswick. 1 was not at the hearing
in Atlantic City, but I woula venture to sev that there was simila~
testimony there. As Donna saia, althouyn this Commission is only

empowered tc receive testimony, nevertneless, we are going to present
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our findings, with some recommendations, to the Governor and the
Legislature in January, 1986. So all of this is important, and we
thank you for your contribution.

MS. RUSS: I would like you to clarify one thing so that I
can get a better picture. You said the word is that later on in these
projects, people will be taken from a list. They're saying people will
be taken from a list for jobs. How was this list compiled? 0Uid people
apply for jobs? Is that how this list came about?

MR. MOURE: Well, the list is being compiled by a gentleman
named Field. Mr. Field has taken people with construction skills. wnow
this is the quote, unguote statement he 1is putting out. He has
compiled a list of people with construction skills. He tests them and
places their names on the list, so when these people are neeced, tney
will be called upon.

If you will allow me to give you my own opinion, I think that
is a bunch of crap. Wnhat is going to happen 1is, the project is going
to come about, and there are going to be just enough people hired to
kéep the affirmative action people off their bDacks. It is goiny to
keep on rolling with people from Bridgeton, Vineland, etc.

FROM AUDIENCE: Anyone out of the City.

MR. MOUJRE: Yes. We have a (Name of proygram inaudible;
witness not sitting in front of microphone.) proygram right nere. 1
have a young nephew who 1is a carpenter who works on this program. It
took my nephew a year before he was even placed on tne list. 1
believe, because we weren't too political then, but going to meetinygs,
his name started to crop up more and more. Then suddenly, one gay a
letter came and he got a job. We had taken a group of nim and nis
friends down 8 year anag a nalf ago, and he is the only one who has been
hired. He was hired =-- I pelieve he 1is still working, altnough I
haven't seen him for about a montn -- to do the ventilation work right
over here on State Street. He was the carpenter on that.

The point is, we could take some of the money they're using

-- because I'm sure it 1s a Federal subsidy coming down -- and put 1t
into a Jjob program. Again, then you wouldn't have to worry about
hunger, If a person works, it's on him whetner or not he wants tgo



eat, I'm quite sure no one is going to starve to death with money in
his pocket. If he does, it's on him.

MS. HERZ-LANE: Since this is informal, may I add something?

MS. RUSS: Yes, feel free.

MS. HERZ-LANE: I just want to pick up on what this man said
because it is really important. This is an example of how even pouring
money into the problem doesn't always work. When the State of new
Jersey decided to put the prison in this very neighborhood -- the
medium security prison now under construction -- people from this
neighborhood advocated very strongly, and the State of New Jersey
allocated one-half of 1% for a training program, which 1 think they are
supposed to do under the law, for this $30 million project. About a
year to a year and a nalf ago, that program was startea. There was a
person hired to take people's names and to compile the list that that
man is talking about.

People, by the hundreds 1 would think, went to this person,
signed up, and got on that list. I know there were dozens of people
over there. Eventually, that project just plain old fell apart and,
long after the fact, we found out that not a single name put on that
list ever ended up with the people who were building the prison. 50
the money was just utterly wasted. It is an interestinyg aside tnat tne
person who was then in charge of that project has now been hired to do
the same thing for the transportation terminal, also under construction
in Camden now. That tells you something about the kind of thing that
is going on.

MS. SULDEN: He 1s making $65,UUU.

MS. HERZ-LANE: Tnat's right; thank you.

MR. MUURC: It's not the money. If you spend $3 million for
a program, $2-1/2 million of it goes toward administrative costs, and
there is only %5U0,uUd0 to put people to work. Then you say, '"Well,
this program didn't work." I guess it didn't work, because you have
administrators. You're not supposea to pe training adrninistrators; you
are supposed to be training bricklayers.

What tney have to do is lay adown a systein which says we ere

going to train "A" numdber of carpenters, "A" number of pricklavers, "2
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number of laborers, "X" number of this, and "X" number of that. Watch
and see. If they come down with some real money and a real program --
like the sign says on Broadway -- "Camden Is Coming Back to Life."
Camden will be alive.

I hear people say, "This City used to be bustling." This is
what I hear all the time.

MS. ROSS: Okay; thank you.

MR. FURD: Very quickly, [ would like to follow up on what
Wolfgang said, with a brief question. What did you try to do about
that, Wolfgang, if anything? When you found out that not one single
person whose name appeared on the list was nired, did you take any
steps to address the problem?

MR. HERZ-LANE: Ubviously, at that point, for that particular
project, it was too late. There was something going on in terms of not
having that same person rehired for the transportation terminal.
Cathy, can you tell us something about that?

MS. SUGDEN: Yes.

MR. HERZ-LANE: You know more about that than I do.

MS. SUGDEN: But, to top that, we took Z5 men ready for work,
and 6U other people to support them, down toc the prison site to shut
down the whole works. No one showed up from any press. Tne word never
got out that we stopped the construction of the prison for a day. That
was one thing that happened.

Then, on top of tnat, a new group of people sits on the
Af firmative Action Committee of the Uity -- 811l Tucker, Sai Apple --
and they lopbpied hard that Ken Peele would not get tnis Jjob on the
transportation terminal. But because Pat Darden, who was tnen Director
of Community Development in the City -- tnis is a ygame which yoes on --
was the one who brought Ken Peele into the prison job, she was tne one
who had the say in making sure he got the transportation job. He had a
$17,0UU salary because it was only considered part-time at tne prison.
It was only a limited amount of time -- I think it was three months or
six months of work. Tnis 1s a full-time job, a year tning, and he gets
$67,000., He is from Trenton. Uther people applied for the job, but ne
is the one who got it,

MS. RUSS: Thank yous
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FATHER CALVO: It is the fault of the contractors; it is the
fault, also, of the City authorities. The contractors, if they are
being told, "I want a job"-- Obviously, a contractor is accustomed to
his own men, so he uses people from his own place. He does not bother
in the least about the people of tne locality. He is not interested.
He knows the men under him, It is the fault of the contractors,
definitely, but it is largely tne fault of the City authorities. They
should dictate some kind of a percentage. Okay, you are a contractor;
you are given the job, but 20%, 3U%, or 4U% of the people must be from
the locality. I don't think tnere is anyone enforcing that particular
idea.

MR. MOURE: Excuse me. There is a clause already. There is
a clause in the contract which says that 4U% of the workers on the
transportation center have to be Camden residents. Twenty percent are
minorities. I might have it switched around, but I know it is 4U and
20.

Right now all they have i1s power equipment 1n there to work
on the foundation. But in four or five months, when tne money starts
to come down, they are going to need plumbers, tne people who put in
the heating ducts, the people who pour the concrete, people to mix
concrete, people to load and unload, people wno weld, and people like
bricklayers and bricklayers' assistants.

I guarantee you, if you push tnis, you are going to find
people from Princeton working. You are going to finag college students
working. I don't have anything against anyone working, but I don't
quite see how a college student can go to school for nine months, come
to live in Vineland, go to Glassboro State, and come all the way to
Camden and get a jJoo for three montns, when you have someone whd 1is
willing to work for 12 montns out of tnhe year. You can work in
construction -- with the modern technology of the Space Proyram -~ for
12 months out of tne year. You have people who are willing to work 14
months out of the vyear.

I heard that tnis progras is callesg the "4-4-7," tnree snifts
seven days a week, I pelieve they want it finished by 1Y8o. You have

people out tnere who would love to work. Canden does not nave (o neva



anyone unemployed just with this one project. There are only 88,000
people in the City of Camden, and I am quite sure about 25,000 or
30,000 of them are unemployed. Just this one project could bring
Camden back if they decided to use people from the City of Camden.

It is my belief that the people will be people from Bridgeton
and Vineland. I am not downing anyone, but why import people to work,
when you have unemployed people right here?

MS. RUSS: Thank you. We have someone waiting here. dgefore
you begin, a lot of people have come in since we began, and I would
like to reintroduce the members of the panel to those people.

This 1is a hearing oefore the WNew Jersey Commission on
Hunger. We have been appointed by Governor Kean and the Legislature.
My name is Donna Ross; I am a member of tne Commission. I work with a
head start program in Newark. To my right is Margaret Hart, who is
representing Assemblyman David Schwartz. To her right is Joe Ford, wnho
is representing Bread for the World. Mr. Ford is also a member of the
Commission on Hunger.

We are asking people to give tneir nanes, spell their names
for the benefit of the ladies recording the hearing, and tnen begin.
RONALU TALBERT: My name 1is Ronald Talpert. 1 an an ex-Vista
volunteer. I came here in 1965, I am a fiberglassman, I worked
helping a lot of people to get started in the positions they are in
now. Then they all forgot about the community completely.

1 left nere, anag came back in 1Y76. 1, myself, naven't had a
job since I came back. No one knows me anymore. But Just looking
around at the different projects and everytning in this City, tnere are
over 1,U0U jobs where they could hire people in the City, but tney
don't. As long as they can keep a problem, they can write up a
program. The situation does not have to change. They've suckered so
many of the people in working with the voters. It happens every year.
Tney promise them a jou, ana as soon as they get tnrougn the election,
they don't have anytning else to do witn them.

They nire us to clean up the neighbornood every time, out
that is not our job. e get nothing. Even the scnouls now are not

State-approved. Tne kide wno are graduating fros nign schocl now, tinas



year -- no college has to accept them because the schools have not been
approved. The Mayor allows anyone to come in and say, "Camden is a
City of welfare bums." I forget what else was said. But they refuse
to hire people in this City. For what reason, I don't know. We have
generations in the City. Camden is unique among a lot of cities
because it is not like the kids here drop out of school and don't get a
high school education. Tnere are college people in this City on
welfare, not because they're nasty, not because they won't work, but
Jjust because--

I don't know why they do it. When the Mayor got in, he said
that all of the Jjobs were going to be for the people in the City.
Check City Hall or any of these places; most of the people who work
downtown here in the City do not live in Camden. Even the President of
the City Council lives down by Atlantic City. He closes meetings 1in
order to get out of here on time.

If they took the projects here-- At one time you might have
said tnat people were just nasty ano woula tear up. Ukey?  You can
make a visit to any one of these projects-- If you go into some of
these houses, the mommas keep them straightened up to snuff.

Frurt AUDIENCE:  Thank you.

MR. TALBERT: 1 mwean, they have them decked out to a "T."
But they don't get any services whatsocever. We don't have a full
Janitorial crew on any of tnese projects. If the City just maae
whoever is running the Housing Autnority hire a complete staff, do you
realize they could take YU to TuU people or so off tne street? They
don't get the grass cut; the bushes don't get trimmed; the garbauye
doesn't get straigntenea up enough, or anytning. All of these things
could mean jobs, but they refuse to hire people on.

We don't nave gangs in this City. I mean, vou have a little
robbing, as you know, in any city. I am not saying Camden is pure or
anythinj, but they are forcing a type of situation in tnis City by
refusing to hire people in tne City. They don't even want to take care
of your house,

I own my house here now. Do you know it's a law that we

can't even get a second mortgage on our house? ~O bank will give vou &
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mortage on any of your property in this City. It's a black market,
even from Philly, In Philly, you used to be able to get a second
mortgage, but the word is out that you do not give mortgages in
Camden. So, we can't win in any way, shape, or fashion. And tney will
take our property and put us out if we get a little behind in our
taxes. The businesses downtown don't pay taxes worth a damn.

There is a man who owns a big record shop in a little
shopping ‘area. Check 1t out. He isn't paying any taxes on it.
They're buying it all. Tney just put some dust boards up ana put in a
little crappy business, but they don't last long.

FRUM AUDIENCE: And he's not even a City resident.

MR. TALBERT: You know, I think I have come up witn a
solution on how to deal with it. I know how to deal with it now
because 1 have worked here and I have seen where we have made our
mistakes. Tne thing for us to do now is to pegin to pool our forces
and hurt them where it will hurt them the most. right now they are
taking our money illegally. We're paying taxes illegally as far as
them taking our school taxes. All we are doing is paying someone's
salary. You have more teachers in that school than-- I went on a bus
trip with them, and I was never so embarrassed in my life. I hanyg with
some dirty guys, but none of these guys have ever talked or actea the
way those teachers acted. These are the people who are teaching our
children.

FROM AUDIENCE: They're not educated themselves.

MR. TALBERT: Tney're all Caucasians. If they aren't taking
dope, they have little girls on there who they are getting pregnant.
Tne reason there is no responsibility there is because the teacher, if
he can't do it to one little girl-- He can't call the momna up because
he is afraid that child might tell s little bit more tnan wnhat he wants
her to tell. It's a game because the population now is almost all
young adults, who are not politically orientea in any manner. They
breed off of tnat.

The people who have worked in tinis City ang nave tried to yet

things going are getting frustrated because they are being tricked,

trickeag, trickea every time. Tne onlv wav w2 can begin to hurt tnes -
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MS. RUSS: Your message is coming in loud and clear. [ think
what you and the people who spoke before you have said is that while
the problems of food and hunger are problems in Camden, the real source
of the problem is the lack of jobs.

MR. TALBERT: In order for people to get blankets in the
wintertime-- Do you know the requirements to get blankets? They have
to be without heat and have unpaid bills. Now, what is that to tell a
young girl who goes there? They're saying, "If you don't pay your
bills, I'll give you a blanket." They weren't giving them blankets for
all of the kids. It was one blanket to a family. So you're breeding
the type of thing you want. Until the leadership has been attacked and
we get new people in here who have not made fools of all of the people,
we won't go anywhere. Unless we pull back our forces-- When I say,
"Pull back our forces," I mean everyone should take their kids out of
these schools. If you close these schools down for two weeks, tney
won't get their Federal money.

FROM AUDIENCE: That's right.

MS. RUSS: Are you organizing this kind of stuff now?

MR. TALBERT: Yes, that is my next step right now. 1 am
going to have a meeting on April 15 for all of the community
organizations in the City. We are going to try to form a strong party
among all of us to get off of their proplems and start to organize our
beat.

FROM AUDIENCL: The warm weather 1is coming now. We can
stay--

MR. TALBERT: wWe are going to close down everytning in tnhis
City, starting tnis spring. We are going to hit tnem where it hurts.
We are going to tell the rousing Authority-- We are going to start
with the houses in the community. Tney're empty and they can be lived

in.  Some have absentee landlords who live outside of the City; we

can't get to them. The houses which are liveable-- I have already
contacted two -- what do vyou call the guys who do the rehabilitation
woTk on houses? -- contractors. Tney, salag tney woula be willing to

help us to bring the nouses up to standard so people can live in them.

So we ara2 goins to start doinyg it on our own becsuse we ars not age!linu



anywhere. We figure if we take the houses over and drop the rent on
them to where the people-- Right now, rent is higher than any salary
you can get in the City. So if we drop the rent down to tne people's
level, we can make it. So we are going to take the houses, and instead
of going under a Federal program, we are going to fix them up and move
families in. They might pay maybe $165.UU for a three-bedroom house.
Instead of that rent going to someone's bank, it will go into another
house. And we will keep on until we build up our own community.

The Housing Authority will not get any money until they hire
a certain amount of people out of the projects to work. These are the
tactics that have to be taken. It doesn't make sense to go up to City
Hall because they won't come. Or if they do come, they bring the
police. They cannot stop people from doinyg anytning. All we have to
do is nothing, and that is what we are going to do. We are going to
pull all of our people out of everytning ana tell them to do notning,
because we aren't getting anything.

MS. RJs5: Tnank you.

MR. MUORE: To clarify the situation, I was up at City Halli
three days ago checking on 145> South Broadway. Tnis was a property
sold by the City of Camden in 1983. 1f you go up and look at 145>
South Broadway -- for people who know Camden, it's right across from
the chicken factory -- it is abahdoned. It has been abandoned since
tne City of Camden sold it at auction. Tnere is usually a stipulation
-- 1 don't know how it was in 1983 -- that the property sold at auction
has to be renovated in a year's time. Now we're in 19d5, and I believe
it was sold two years ago either this month or next montn. I am
wondering how we can have builders like this., Tnis house belongs to a
corporation, so you know what they are doing witn it. Tney are writing
it off on tneir taxes, saying, "Tnis property has not shnown a profit."
This is how that goes.

I'm wondering why these people are allowed to let builaings
sit like this. It's a small place. Probably someone could get it for
$5du.Uu. 1 tnink it went for $5vu.uu at auction the first time. witn
a few more dollars, they could make a little store or something out of
it, and it coula turn a profit because there 1s & factor, rignt acro.-

the street which runs witih tnree snifts.



Now, these are the little things that are happening around
the City that I can't understand myself. If you are trying to bring
the City back, and you are trying to improve your tax base, why are you
allowing these things to happen?

MR. TALBERT: Just one thing. I can't understana this
because I heard something at a meeting the other night. There's
Whitman Park, where the kids can play. - Some guy leased it from the
City in 196U-something. He doesn't even live nere, but he rents it
from the City for one dollar, and the kids are not allowed to play in
the park. He still leases the park, but he doesn't live here anymore.
He lives down by the ocean. However, nhe has the say about what goes on
in that park and what does not go on in that park. There are people
over there who have formed community groups, and the kids want to start
a baseball league. But they are not allowed to use the park because he
has sent tne word that they cannot use tne park. You tell me how a man
can do that.

You tell me how a City can have parking meters, and someone
who doesn't even live here, someone who lives in Philadelphia, can
come over here and collect the money. The money doesn't come to the
City. The only money the City gets is when someone writes a ticket.
All of the money from tne parking meters goes to someone who lives
elsewhere. I just don't understand that, and then you tell me that I'm
dumb, stupid, and ignorant. You tell me that none of my kids want to
do anything. You won't give them a place to live.

I don't know how the Feaeral government-- I think one of our
biggest problems is that we haven't been able to bring someone here to
really help us out. We too often go straignt to City rall, and City
Hall is as nothing as far as the people go. Look at a City this small,
look at what it has in 1it, and look how it looks. You bhave some
educated folks here. You don't have a lot of dropouts; thev go to
school Jjust to get the money. You have momma in schoolj; you have
grandmomma in school; daddy and everybody in school. You can't say
that tne kids haven't peen to school. Tney, are in school. we do nave
high school and college graduates. Check it out and you'll fina that

the people in Camden ars not dummies.



Why won't the City-- The Mayor was going to bring the City
up, but he takes everything he wants to have in this City out to Cherry
Hill. How are you going to bring Camden back if you are the Mayor--

Do you mean to tell me that out of all the people we have in this City
that he can't have any kind of a social in this City--

FROM AUDIENCE: Nothing.

MR. TALBERT: =--no kind of fund-raising in this City? WNow if
you are afraid to bring people into this City, what the heck 1is
everyone else going to do?

FROM AUDIENCE: We can't get a sports complex. We have to go
all the way to the Meadowlands for a basketball game. It's the truth.

MS. RUSS: Thank you. Let me just make one statement, and
then we will hear from our next speaker.

I think everything that has been said tonight has been very
important. The thing I am struggling witn now is, we have a mission,
so to speak, a mandate for this Commission., Part of that mandate is to
bring recommendations for deeling with the proolems of food ana hunyger
back to the Legislature. I think what you have been talking about is
very much related to those problems, but because there has been so much
participation tonight, I, for one, and I think the other Commission
members will agree with me, would like to come out of this hearing with
some ideas and thoughts on recommendations that could be made--

MR. TALBERT: To help hunger.

MS. RUSS: I would like to hear what this group woula
recommend to deal with the problems of food and hunger. 1 know they
are related. That messags is coiming througn loud anc clear. 1 see tne
relationships between everything you have been talking about, but
please understand the dilemma we have, in that our remarks must b2
focused on this particular issue.

MR. TALBERT: Okay, but 1f you are talking about doing
something about giving food away 1n this City or helping the people in
this City, don't go to City Hall. Okay? Go to the community and the
neighioornooas which sel up tne little--

M5. RUSS: Thank you.

MR. FURD: Tnere 1is a gentlenan aovn tners waiting 0
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MS. RUSS: I'm sorry. Let's hear from the people who haven't
spoken yet. Then, as time allows, we will--

Will you please come up? (addressing next witness) I know
you have been waiting for a long time. I'm sorry I don't know people's
names. We will come back to the rest of you; just hold your thoughts.
RICHARD PATTERSON: My name is Richard Patterson. I am an intern for
the Camden Lutheran Parish. My observations and what I woula like to
share with you are based on my having been here since September, 1944.
Part of tnis is observation and reflection, having come from a
middle-class background and realizing a lot of the prejudices my
parents had of the inner city and the poor, and what has been iy
experience here, what I have seen here, and comparing those two.

One of the things 1 keep thinking about is trying to name
what is going on. You know, 1is there a pattern to a lot of the
problems we have? Une of the things I think on that is-- I can't find
a name for it yet, but it is like a partite. There is an in group and
an out group. The out group is everyone in tne City of Camden; the in
group is anyone from the suburbs who the City wants to attract for some
reason. It is not only the City government, it's the people who hire
and who create the jobs. Even private businesses -- all of their
policies are directed toward going out of the City. In a sense, they
are emptying the City of any money the City might make on its own.
They empty tne City of any joo possibilities; everything goes to tne
suburbs.

It was very interesting for me coming here. Camden is tne
County seat; at least that 1is wnat 1 was told. sut it is very
interesting that Motor Vehicle and otner departments which you would
expect to be right downtown -- that is wnat you would expect in a
normal city -- are more and more going out to the suburbs. Even the
people in the City, in the County seat, have to go to the suburbs to
get a driver's license. Tnst is not in one localizea area. There are,
I don't know, how many places you have to go. VYou have to go to this
building for this and tnat builaing for that., It's fine for people wro
have cars and who live in the suburbs, it's clossr to them, but what

aoout tne people herz? I waz tola tnat is pecauss peopls from tnc



outside are afraid to come into Camden. Does that make sense? Instead
of improving the City, they're just dumping it.

I thought, in terms of the tax structure, where is the
accountability? They want all the services of the City, but they don't
pay for them. In fact, people try to move outside of the City to avoid
that. Isn't that a lot of the problem?

People talk about the fact that the biggest pfoblem is jobs.
From my perspective, having seen a big dichotomy between a suburban
person's attitudes and an inner City person's éttitudes, that still
comes across in a condescending way to people here because it says that
they are totally dependent, and tnat is part of tne problem. They are
made to feel that way. With people who come here, even social help,
there is the whole thing of how do you help without makinyg people feel
dependent, working for them, instead of working witih them. Is that
part of the problem?

That condescension transfers even-- I have seen it in tne
Police Department, in other auencies, and in business, wher:s peonle ar:
no longer treated as human beings. They are not seen for tne values
and the talents they have. Anyone not living here can easily say,
"Well, those people do not have incentive. They do not work. They are
Jjust lazy." But tnat is because tney just pass by in their cars. Tney
are not in the City long enough to see what 1s going on because they
are afraid. Just being here for the short time 1 have been here, if
you put sometining out-- We put out an old wasninyg machine whicn we
thought was no good. At the church, we have put out pbroken couches, or
this or that, which we felt were no longer useful. Within five minutes
-- it's amazing -- someone will come around and say, "May I have this?"
They take it and somehow they try to make a buck on it. Lf that isn't

being entreprensurial, having incentive, and working, I don't know what
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is. I don't know anyone in business who can wore tnzt fast -- you
know, in five minites. That 1s literaily what happened witn tne

washing machine and a couple of other things.

Businesses must be awful stupid nol to realize &s.1l ol tne
natural talents. They shoulu send a scout 1n ana just watcon the
talents these people have, which tney nave eltner aevelopea o tneir
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own or had help with, maybe with some educational background. You
know, it's amazing; it's Jjust waiting here. People are waiting for
opportunities.

But to get back to the dichotomy. I[t's like a partite. I
don't know what to call it,. It's a different type of oppressive
system. Yes, the problem is with jobs, but the other side of that, in
terms of justice, is that there are a lot of people who are not doing
their jobs, from City government to business in this area, and rignt on
down the line. Where is the accountability? Just being here for a
short time, I have seen that there are many different neighborhood
organizations which again and again do different types of advocacy and
creative complaining, going to meetings again and again, in order to
ensure accountapility. But still, that is not quite enougnh.

There are a lot of things that can go on and do go on here
from the office of tne Mayor on down to business, and there is no way
to stop this. There is no way to put an end to this; there is no way
to call a person into account to provide the opportunities. That is
the justice side,

A suggestion, in terms of structure, is, is there some way
the State can work a little more with assuring the accountapility of
the Federal government? There is funding. What about tne
mis-allocation of funds, and pointing out that when this money is
given-- You know, we have seen money given to housing projects here,
put a lot of it is just poor management. It is not that the people who
are living in the housing units don't care; the managers are not doing
their jobs.

MS. RUSS: Tnank you. I want to give the other people who
wish fo speak a chance, so I would like to move on. Are there any quck
questions?

MR. FURD: nNo, but thank you very much, Mr. Patterson.

MS. RUa5: Thank you.

M5. HART: The picture is getting clearer and clearer.

MS. RUSS: May we have Father William Foley, please?

FATHER WILLIAM FULEY: My name is Fatner William Foley. I am a Jesuit

priest 1living at roly iame. »y comments are not goiny to bpe too
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lengthy because I am newly here since October. I came here more to
learn by listening this evening because I don't know all about what is
going on here.

I am also a pediatrician. I opened an office on State Street
in mid-November. From experience, I think I can give some reference
to the question that was asked earlier, "Is there hunger and
malnutrition?" as I see it as a pediatrician. I have been around Third
World countries, mostly in the Caribbean and Central America. It is
different here. Here you don't see kwashiorkor and you don't see
marasmus, but as a pediatrician I am still seeing babies born SGA --
small for gestational age. I am still seeing babies born prematurely.
As you know, these are two conditions that are related to many factors
prenatally and educationally, but also, as you know, there 1is a
nutritional component involved in these two entities you see with
newborn babies. So, yes, there is evidence here of nutritional
problems.

You asked for recommendations. I would make a few strono
recommendations and base them on the evidence we see. The evidence we
see is SGA -- small for gestational age babies -- and premature
babies. We see a need, every day, every wontn, for the progyrams wihicn
exist, like this very house we are meeting in. This house is needea;
this program is needed. We see a need for the Wil Program, ana we see
a need for the continuation of generous donations; for example, fron
Mead Johnson, which supplies my office with formula ana vitamins, whicn
people can come in for. Tnese items are not being stored there
unused. They are needed. That means there is a great need for tne
programs, based on the evidence I see Jjust in my office.

Now, one strong recommendation 1 would make 1is that
government agencies certainly avold what we hear apout as imminent;
that is, any cutback in progran funding or the making availanle of
resources. You are a Commission on Hunger. Several years ago, &
statement was made that, '"There 1is no nunger in America.'" You have to
listen, and not responug to that question tne way 1t was respondea to 1n
the past. So the first recommendation is that the government avoid any
temptation to retract services or funding, because what 1s her:z 1s

needed., There is evidence of 1ts necd because 1t 1s Deing usel.
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We see donations of food to the parish house. That food
doesn't stay around the house; it's gone. People are coming for it;
they need it.

Another recommendation I would make, from my point of view,
specifically toward the WIC Program, is that the red tape and the
time-lag be reduced as much as possible. Why is it when a young mother
gives birth, they give her an appointment for two or three months after
the delivery date for the first WIC evaluation? I don't think that is
the way the Program should be run. I think the lag time can be reduced
quite a bit. That's a bureaucratic question. Again, that is the way
some people do their jobs.

I would hate to think about what would happen here in Nortn
Camden and other areas of Camden from which people come to my office if
there was any lessening of what is available here at the present time.
Then I think we would start to see malnutrition in the form of
kwashiorkor and in the form of marasmus. I don't think we are far from
that., Just because we don't see it -- don't tawe tnat as evidencs tngt
everything is okay. We see SGA and we see prematurity on a nutritional

basis. We see a need for what 1s here because it is beiny used.

M. FORD: Father, pardon me. What 1s marasmus? I am
uninformed.

FATHER FOLEY: It is a form of wmalnutrition -- severe
malnutrition -- of all components, carbohydrate calories, as well as

protein, as well as needed fats.

Now, 1s there hunger here in North Camden? You've heard it
from many, many pecple. There 1s hunger for Jobs. [ tnink that is the
entry point into the vicious cycle that has been occurring here.

MS. HART: Do you have any idea of tne infant mortality rate
in this City, or this area?

FATHER FULEY: The infant mortality rate is comparable to
other areas in the country. As tnat 1is measured in Camden,
Philadelphia, or New York, centers are reporting that they see a larye
number of indigent, poverty-basea populations. 1t is around the Y% to
11% quoted nationally.

FRUIT AdDIcact:  Too many.
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FATHER FOLEY: Compare that though to someplace like Cherry
Hill, or in my own home state, Massachusetts, Framingham, with a 2% or
3% mortality.

MS. ROSS: Can you tell us anything about the problems
related to malnutrition you see in older children? 0Uo you see iron
deficiency? Do you see lead poisoning, or that kind of thing?

FATHER FOLEY: Yes. Tnere -is a high degree of lead
poisoning. You are referring to the relationship between hunger and
pica -- looking for other nutritional sources and ingesting lead from
different non-food sources because of hunger. There is a good deal of
that.

MR. TALBERT: There is a great deal of old folks' disease,
and a lot of disease of the young kiads, too. when I say "old folks'
disease," I'm talking about arthritis and stuff like that. These are
because of tihe cola types of food they eat.

FROM AUUIENCE: Cold types of housing.

MR. TALBERT: Food like they give them in school -- cold, ary
sandwiches, You wouldn't eat them yourselves. You should see sone of
the diets. I don't know what they write up that tney get the money
with, but it 1is never what 1is practiced in the schools 1in the
neighborhood. You snould see some of tne garbaye they want to give
these kids, and they bring truckloads of it in.

FATHER FULEY: One other recoinmendation I would like to make
is, later in time, secondarily, or so forth, wnat I see or experiencs
or hear about around here is also eating on tne basis of wnat is
available, as opposed to what is known from nutritional science to be
needed for proper development and growtn. In other words, many come by
and pick up a bag of groceries. The groceries are assemoled in the
healthiest manner possible witn the idea of a balanced diet. But you
know it is not a balanced diet. You see popcorn next to Cracker Jack
next to Rice Krispies in the bag. That is what is available and aple
to be given to people.

So, a recommendation 1s that tne approach be baszed more o
nutritional science, as oppoased to what is Just availabple.

M5, RUSH: Jkay, tnank you. You've been walting & long

time. (adarsssing next witness,



VIRGINIA HUNTER: My name is Virginia Hunter and I am a City resident.
I have been a resident of the City of Camden since 195Z. 1I've raised
six children, three of whom have completed college, but are not working
in the City. They all have degrees. One of them had to go all the way
to Atlantic City to find work, which costs more than $2,30u a year in
carfare alone. 1 have one who had to go back to school to go into
nursing in order to get a job.

City Hall is run over with news about people who are leaving
the City. I have a girl with a degree, and she said, "Mommy, why do
you want us to go to school? You're talking about going to school, but
we can't even get a job." The Mayor created jobs last year for the
juniors and seniors at Camden High School. The program was called,
"The Park Rangers." They had to be trained on the job; they went
through a graduation ceremony; they had uniforms; tney had the works.
There wefe TV cameras there, but the job diadn't last 1U months.

These kids were willing to work. They monitored tne parks so
that the younger kids and older kids who lived out of the (ity, and
even the children within the City limits couldn't destroy the parks.
They were not supposed to apprehend anyone, but if tney saw anytihing
out of hand or anyone destroying anything, they had walkie-talkies ana
could call the City police to tell them to come in.

These were kids who were willing to work for a minimum wage.
And the jobs were done away with. One of my daughters worked in the
program. She was not a dummy. Out of 1,500 black kids in the State of
New Jersey, she was number 12 in the PSAT scores. It's frustrating to
me that she can't even get a job in the City. She is attenaing Rutgers
University and she can't even find a part-time job. We have department
stores in Cherry Hill; we have little stores in tne City. Even a joo
in City Hall-- There are enough CETA jobs, pbut some of those people
have been on the CETA Program for seven or eight years. It shouldn't
last that long. Let's move some of them out of there and give these
young kids a chance.

I'm cleaning toilets tryingy to make enas meet to raise my
children. You know, I'm tired and my feet are swollen. I'm out here

practically begging. My xids went to tne City pupnlic schools, put |



had to take them out. There's Cathy, there's her husband. Tney can
verify it, Four years ago I had to snatch them out; they knew
absolutely nothing compared to my children who are 29 and 27. Tne
education was decent then. What we have now -- and I am comparing
children -- they didn't know A from Z. I had to put them in a
parochial school in Pennsauken. So you know what this is running me a
year. I really can't afford it so I'm pinching pennies, and I am
putting out pots of food which we are not accustomed to eating. It's
not easy. I'm robbing Peter to pay Paul; I'm robbing Paul to pay them
all.

That is just being plain frank about it. It's not easy.
Some nights I cry when I go to bed because it is a crying situation.
Yes, I would love to leave the City, but wnen I sit in my window and I
watch me trying to go to Cherry Hill to go to work, with gas that I
can't afford for my little raggedy bomb, ana I watch all of the
Lincolns coming into the City where I live to go to work, it is very
frustrating, That is tne argument. Without all the tax I guess they
can afford %150,UUd homes. Tney aren't paying taxes in the City.
They're taking what we're paying taxes for. Then I see people on Ferry
Avenue or at du8 Market Street standing in linme for two or tnree hours
to wait for a bag of groceries, for powdered milk, for four or five
cans of canned goods, ana they talk to you as if you are animals. This
is fooa that some rich person has donated, writing it off their taxes,
and it is a giveaway anyhow.

So, they are not psyching my mina. Maybe they are psyching
someone else's mind, but they're not psyching me. I watch girls who
have to supplement tneir incomes, even though tney are receiving
welfare. All of these girls don't want to be on welfare. 1 watcn
them., They go to Shapiro's. Tney want better things for tneir kids --
$25.00 or $30.0U0 shoes. Welfare doesn't buy them any more. These are
people who really care about their kids' feet -- the conaition of their
feet. 1 have one with scoliosis; I can't yet no damnea nelp. Wnat |
pay, I have to pay out of my pocket. Noboay tell me about tough. 1

knew what it was then and I know what it is now.
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I know we fought for 11 months to get a traffic light next to
the Northeast School at Seventh and Elm through our same Acting Mayor,
Mayor Primas. He told me he wasn't aware that there wasn't a light
there. 1 called him a flat out-and-out liar, because 1 lived one block
from there in 1961. We asked for two traffic lights, but we only got
one. Now we have a senior citizens' building there, two schools, and a
townhouse building. We have five times as many people and one traffic
light. What do you do in such a situation? You lose confidence after
a while. You feel like giving up. Everyone is not a fighter like me;
I am going to be here until the end because 1 am a fighter. But some
of the young ones are really disgusted. They can't go to the suburbs
where the rent is $3U0.00 or $400.UJ., Where are they going to yo? The
landlords have the heat off, so they can't get heat. Public Service
cuts it off after April 15, and they won't have any heat. 1lt's either
eat or freeze. You stay warm or you eat; it's one of the two, it's not
both. You either pay Public Service and go hungry, or you eat and
freeze, It's either/or; you just can't nave both. It's so unfair.
Some of tnese kids wouldn't get a hot breakfast if the school dian't
give a free breakfast. That is the wod in heaven trutn.

MS. ROSS: Are the children in the Camden schools receiving
breakfasts?

MS. HUNTER: I believe they are, aren't they?

MR. TALBERT: Yes, but what they give them isn't worth a
whole lot.

MS. HUNTER: They told me -- I'm not saying anyone's name,
but I know employees who work there -- that the stuff comes 1in
precooked. It goes into a microwave oven. Notning is tested when it
comes out. It has been known to have ice in-between it when they take
it out. They don't care because they are there for the dollar. Then I
can't understand-- Will you please find out for me -- wnat is your
name, please?

MS. RUSS: My name is Uonna Ross.

MS. HUNTER: I have a grandoaughter who goes to a City public
school. hy isn't a child allowed to bring her own luncih fron howe?

They refuse to allow her to bring her lunch from home. [ mean, we're



not in Russia. This is supposed to be tne United States, and they
refuse to allow my daughter to pack a lunch so my granddaughter can
bring it from home. Suppose a child has an allergy and she can't eat a
certain thing, or suppose a child is of a certain religion and can't
eat something? To me, that is taking a person's freedom awa9 from him
or her. They flatly refused, and said they would expel her if she
brought her lunch from home. I didn't want to take a day off, but if I
had, I would have brought her lunch, my 1lunch, and everybody else's
lunch. But I didn't take a day off. Yes, I can do that every once in
a while.

It really is frustrating. I have a daughter. She is out of
school in the afternoon because she has all morning classes at
Rutgers. She is majoring in political science. But this kid is done
at 12:30. She cannot find a job. Jobs are either in a suburb where
buses do not run, or if you can catch a bus, after six they don't run
back. So you know, her hands are tied. But everything is so
convenient for the suburbanites. They come in and make our dollars;
they are the ones you see shopping. There is construction in the City,
but our people are not getting the jobs.

MR. TALBERT: This is hunger; this is definitely hunger.

MS. HUNTER: It sure is hunger.

MR. TALBERT: I just want to say one thing.

MS. ROSS: Okay. We only have a limited amount of time, and
there is one more person who wishes to speak.

MR. TALBERT: What I want to say is short.

MS. ROSS: Go for it.

MR. TALBERT: All I want to ask you is, when you all get
through, will you recommend preventive programs?

MS. HUNTEK: They can't do that, they are going to make
recommendations to someone else.

MR. TALBERT: I know, but when you take this information
back, will you take back ideas that can be set up as preventive things
for us?

MS. R0SS: That is our goal.
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MR. TALBERT: Okay. May I suggest one thing since the
City government pushed little girls out of their mommas' houses and
whatnot, without the foundation they need to raise children and to run
a house? Can they use some money to set up-- Nothing will happen
until 1986 or 80-something, right?

MS. ROSS: Our final report is due in January, 1986, but we
passed a resolution to have an interim report next month. We are going

to be presenting preliminary recommendations to the Legislature next

month.

MR. TALBERT: Okay. I would like to see some money set up
within the community -- what they call the poor sections, or around the
projects, or whatever -- for a center where young mothers can come in

and learn prenatal care and learn how to shop. A lot of these young
women when they do go grocery shopping, buy a bag of junk.

MS. HUNTER: Tney don't know how to shop.

MR. TALBERT: They don't know how, and no one is willing to
take the time to teach them. It is not that they don't want to learn.
I believe that if there were a place where they could 1learn
housekeeping -- and I'm not talking about cleaning someone else's
house -- learn just the pbasic model route, I believe they would come,
because a lot of them do want to know. I believe that would also help
to keep a lot of the young guys from running away from the young
girls. Sure, they like them. They get in their pants; they get them
pregnant. The girl has the baby; the momma doesn't want her in the
house no more; and, she gets her own apartment. She never learned how
to clean a house, how to grocery shop, or how to wash and take care of
the kid. It's evident that if 1 go to your house I might like you.
But if you never wash the kids or clean the house or know how to shop,
I am going to run to the next one who looks a little bit cleaner.
Okay? Then I'll go to the next one who looks a little bit cleaner.

We have to start somewhere to educate our young people about
the importance of the family.

MS. HUNTER: I am not going to try to tell you off, but 1
raised six daughters. I had all girls, but there are some who are not
too eager to be mothers. Okay? They don't want to be mothers.

MR. TALBERT: I can deal with that.
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MS. ROSS: Excuse me, there is a person here who has been
waiting for a long time.

MS. HUNTER: You can train them until they are 50, but some
of them just don't want to be mothers because they became mothers
before they wanted to become mothers. So it all beginé in the home
with the parental guidance.

MR. TALBERT: The ones I ~am talking about are the
14-year-olds.

MS. HUNTER: Oh, babies.

MS. R0OSS: I have to cut this conversation short. We only
have five minutes left.

MS. HERZ-LANE: Margaret Herz-Lane again from the Camden
Lutheran Parisn. I just want to comment on the problem of premature
babies and underweight children. This is personal testimony because I
know the child. There was an 11-year-old 1little boy who, by all
appearances, was between seven and eight. He was out of his home for
about -- I tnink it was a period of nine months. While he was away
from his family, he was fed on a regular basis, not great food, but
Just a regular diet that the State would approve of. The kind of
growth I saw in him was phenomenal. I think he grew more in that
nine-month period than he had previously. His weight picked up. His
coloring improved. One of the things I notice is the paleness of
children. Their color is pasty-white, that is, the white kids. With
black kids, it is not always as easy to tell that the quality of their
skin is not as good as it could be.

A friend of mine worked for Cam-Care and ran a program here
two years ago which was set up specifically in North Camden because of
the high infant mortality rate and the problems of young mothers. They
were funded because of the high number of pregnancies that terminated
early or women who didn't seem to have enough skill to get a job and
run a family, and everything. That program was relatively successful,
as far as I know, but it was not continued. It was a one-shot deal.
Basically, they worked on job training and teaching how to run a house,
how to dress for a job interview, ana that kind of tning. It was
targeted in this neighborhood because of the proolem with the infant

mortality rate. It was for single-parent families.
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MS. ROSS: Who funded that program?

MS. HERZ-LANE: It must have been a Federal program, but it
was done by Cam-Care, which is a community health organization. You
could probably pull some records on that.

MS. ROSS: Thank you.

MR. HERZ-LANE: May I say something?

MS. ROSS: Yes, but please make-it short.

(Mr. Herz-Lane's comment lost to transcriber because he was
speaking from out in the audience.)

MR. PATTERSUON: Richard Patterson from the Camden Lutheran
Parish again. What was said earlier about housing-- That is also one
of the biggest issues here. If you just walk down the street, you can
see all of the boarded-up houses and all the burnt-down houses. I
wonder, and I think a lot of us wonder-- It is Jjust a downhill
treadmill. People have problems with their heat. When you walk into
houses you see kerosene heaters. One of the questions I have is, how
many of the fires have helped to make the problem worse? People have
to buy kerosene heaters because they can't afford the other heat, or
they make a trade-off between heat and food, because they are the two
biggest items over which they have no control. They try to use
kerosene heaters, but how much does that raise the rent, because there
are fewer houses because more burn down? And so on and so forth.

FATHER CALVO: I don't think housing has been emphasized
enough here. We have been talking about several things, but there are
many houses which are of no use at all. There are many houses which
have been destroyed day by day. I think there should be an effort to
rebuild these houses. There are many families who have to pay high
rent. If some of these houses could be rebuilt, the people could rent
them for a smaller amount of money. Many people would like to have
their own homes. That would be the best way of‘keeping the houses. I
would not like to see North Camden just remain the same. If a house is
vacant-- (Remainder of Father Calvo's statement lost to transcriber
because he is not speaking into a microphone.)

MR. HERZ-LANE: Tnis 1s terrific; 1 nave control of the
mike.

MS. RUSS: You do have control of the mike, put please--
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DAAIYAH WAHEED: My name is Daaiyah Waheed. I work, but I am also on
welfare. I am the mother of five children; one of my daughters is
married and has two children. As I said, I work and I am on welfare.
When you make the report that you are working, they cut your food
stamps and things like that. My children are very active children.
They are aged six, seven, eight, and fifteen, a growing girl. She is
at Camden High School. She plays basketball and she is a good
student. I have no trouble with her.

But my children 1like to eat. With $178.00 worth of food
stamps-- I used to get $501.00, and even now that I am working I still
get $5U1.00 because I have to pay a baby-sitter, I have to think about
transportation and all that, but they cut my food stamps to $178.UuU.

I was out of work because I was sick. 1 had to have an
operation on my eye. I told the Welfare Department and tney said 1
would have to have a letter saying that I was sick. They said the
doctor's note wasn't good enough because I could have been working and
getting over on them too. They wanted a letter from the job. I told
them at the job that they had to send a letter to the welfare. They
said, "Wasn't the doctor's note good enough?" I told them the Welfare
Department wanted verification from the job that I was out of work.

The Welfare Department said they had not received the letter
and that 1 was not going to get any food.

MS. HUNTER: That's right.

MS. WAHEED: They said I had to have the letter. You know
how some secretaries are, they lose things or something, so 1 just now
received the letter. I had to take this letter down to the welfare and

I had to miss work that day. I called the boss and tola him that 1
couldn't make it in. The job was in Lancaster, Pennsylvania.

MS. HUNTER: West Chester.

MS. WAHEED: Yes. I had to call him and tell him that I
couldn't come to work because I was still at the welfare office. They
depend on me because they know I show up every day and that I am a gooa
worker. He said, "Why are you just now calling me to tell me this.
You are supposed to be at work in five minutes." I said, "I couldn't

help it. I'm still here, and you know how these people are. The
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office never sent my letter yet." I used the reason why. I said, "I
told you a month in advance; I told you what was going on.,"

Then the Welfare Department said, "You are going to have to
get this letter. If you don't get this letter, you will not receive a
check or your food stamps." So, by the will of God, the letter came on
a Saturday. I hurried down there on Monday morning and gave them the
letter, so I guess I'll get a check. I just gave them the letter, so I
guess my check and my food stamps will be late. In the meantime, the
kids still have to eat. If I go out and borrow some money to feed
them, I am going to have to owe people money, and I am still going to
be in the hole. How do you feed children? I have to pay someone to
take me food shopping. If I shop at the Check-In store, the check and
the food are eaten up. The Check-In is real high. Did you ever go in
there and observe the prices? So I have to pay someone to take me two
places to shop. To get my canned goods, I go to Jewel-T. Then I pay
someone to take me to Philadelphia to the Italian market to get my
meats. I buy chicken and stuff like that. I separate all of my food
like that, and it still doesn't last with only $178.0U., With the cash
I have, I have to buy toilet paper, Chlorox, scap, and all that kind of
stuff. Then I have to try to buy shoes and stuff for my children.
Their feet grow every three months, and they're outgrowing their
clothes. So there I'm lost. If I go to the secondhand store, half of
the clothes are as high as they are in a regular store.

This is the way we have to live. My kids don't get milk all
the time, The only time they get milk 1is when they go to school
because I can't afford to buy milk. A gallon of milk costs about two
something down here at Check-In. Bread -- my kids might get bread-- 1
get 1U loaves of bread a month, and that's it. When that bread is
gone, they don't get any more bread. They have to do without. They
just eat rice. That is the way we have to live here.

MR. FORD: I have a question which comes out of what you have
said. It is addressed to the people who operate Leaven House. Is
Priscilla here? (affirmative response) Would you say that you do not
have enough food to meet the needs of the people who come here on a

regular basis? As I heard the last witness, she said that she has very
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serious, sometimes desperate food needs. Now, we can't solve the
problem of there not being sufficient funds to buy the food she needs,
but if you had enough food -- now I am not talking about for all of the
people in Camden who need food, but for the people who come to you on a
regular or semi-regular basis -- you could administer to people like
the lady who just spoke in a more complete way. You could fulfill her
food needs more completely.

Don't you get enough food to deal with some of these concerns
from your contributors, from your donators?

MS. KIRK: Well, as I said, I have been working here at
Leaven House ever since it opened. Sometimes the place is really
outrageous. Sometimes there really isn't enough food circulating --
I'11 just put it like that. Just as Ms. Waheed was saying, I am on
SSI. I get $356.0U0, and only $25.00 worth of food stamps. Okay? That
is supposed to last me a whole month. But it doesn't, because I have
two growing sons. I have to feed them because they do not get food
stamps. As I say, there is just not enough food as far as I am
concerned.

MR. FORD: Okay. Pardon me, let me piggyback on what I said
for just a minute. What do you do? Let's forget for the time being
about the City, the County, and the State.

MR. TALBERT (from audience): I can answer that.

MR. FORD: Do you send out a message to your contributors or
to other churches and organizations which send food to food pantries?

MS. KIRK: I have just volunteered to work here at Leaven
House.

MR. FORD: I'm sorry. Cathy, you should also be heard on
this.

MS. SUGDEN: Regarding the food operation of Leaven House, we
serve a noontime hot meal six days a week. We are élosed Fridays.
We feed anyone who comes here. It has been a very rare thing over the
past three and a half years for us to close the door 1U minutes short
of the full serving time.

We serve a hot meal. FPeople come here, they sit down, and

they are served. The needs of people like Daaiyan and other people --
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those needs are supposedly being taken care of, or can be taken care of
by going to food agencies like El Centro or the Good Samaritan Center.
But she has a problem. She is working durihg the day when all of the
agencies are open. Saturdays and Sundays they are not available. It's
very hard. In order to go to some of these places you have to get your
food from -- if you want a bag of groceries or something -- you have to
go to BUB Market Street first to get your referral to go to these
places.

MS. HUNTER: Then go back the next day.

MS. KIRK: But you can't go except about every three months.

MS. SUGDEN: I think that is a little bit changed now.

MR. TALBERT: You have to go through so much red tape. Don't
forget, if you have a welfare card or some other kind of card, they
don't want to talk to you. You have to go back and get all of the
different papers you need. I think it is so foolish when you are
talking about giving people something free, or when people get in an
emergency situation, such as being burned out-- All right, someone in
the community might help by taking a couple of people in, but you would
think the City would say, "Since you are taking them in, we'll give you
something to help you feed them." But no. If I take a day off to go
up there with the driver to get-- As she said, you have to go to U8
Market Street. Then at b08, some smart ass up there wants to play
games with you for sitting all day. By that time, the center is
closed.

MS. HUNTER: It takes all day, too.

MR. TALBERT: It is an all-day process.

MS. SUGDEN: There are vouchers available through some CEMA
money that is operating in the City, but you still have to go to 8Us
during the day to get the voucher which would be issued to you to go to
certain stores.

MS. KIRK: No, not now. You have to go to a social worker to
get a voucher; then go to 808 to get a voucher to get the food that
day. If you don't go to a social worker to get a voucher from the
social worker, then you have to wait until the next day to get your bag
of food.
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MS. HUNTER: I told you you have to go back the next day.
They don't even take our carfare into consideration.

MS. SUGDEN: In this book, "The Physician Task Force," there
is a study-- 1Is any of your stuff hooked up with that?

MS. ROSS: We have access to it.

MS. SUGDEN: Okay. The last two chapters of that book deal

with the mean-spiritedness of the government agencies which treat

>

people in this way and make them jump through hoops. The last chapter,
practically word for word -- you must have been part of that study --
is what Father Foley just said. All the recommendations were
practically word for word. I would like to see those recommendations
and the whole consideration of government agencies taken into account
in the reporting you are doing.

MS. ROSS: Those are the kind of recommendations that -- once
we compile the testimony from Camden and other cities -- we will be
looking at in trying to formulate our recommendations.

MR. HERZ-LANE: My turn again?

MS. RUSS: Yes, it's your turn. I am going to say that this
is the last speaker. Now, please go ahead.

MR. HERZ-LANE: That's fine with me. Wolfgang Herz-Lane
again. I want to register a complaint and then make a comment. This
afternoon, during your testimony at City Hall, there was some concern
about how do we get to the poor -- whoever they are -- and the hungry,
and how come we don't have recipients of these food services here?
There was a fear that at tonight's hearing no one would show up because
no speakers had registered. This afternoon, Priscilla promised you a
full house, and I think Leaven House has delivered on that. You got a
good earful.

What I am disappointed about, is that at least four of your
panel members who I met this afterncon are not here. They lose a
little bit of credibility if they complain that tney can't get to the
poor, and then when the poor come here, they are not here. I an

disappointed with that.

What I really want to say though 1is, maybe that can also

serve as kind of a summation of tonight. I think something really
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important has happened for you today. This afternocon at City Hall you
heard from a lot of social workers, professionals, and people who run
agencies, as I do. I can dump on them because I am a social worker
too. But you heard a lot of stuff about educational programs and
teaching people how to cook and how to make things stretch. You heard
about resources, money allocations to agencies, more emergency food,
and all that kind of stuff. All of those things are important; I have
nothing against the Band-Aid. But tonight was quite a different
story.

Tonight you heard loud and clear what you didan't hear that
clearly this afternoon. Tonight it came directly from the people. We
don't need emergency food, we need jobs. If we had jobs, there

wouldn't be any hunger. If there is any recommendation you wish to
take back to the State, tell them that we need jobs.

MS. HUNTER: They feel like we don't have pride, and we do
have pride.

MR. HERZ-LANE: I thought I was the last one, Virginia. (At
this point in hearing, there were three or four people speaking at
once. Transcriber is wunable to distinguish who was doing the
speaking.)

MS. ROSS: I would like to make one statement for the
record, We will take your registered complaint back to the
Commission. Your point is a very important point.

Secondly, for those of you who were not here this afternoon,
I think you Just heard a little bit about the kinds of things we
heard then. I would like everyone here to know that we planned each
and every hearing to try, to the best of our ability, to get a balanced
picture. We planned to spend the daytime part of our hearings in
places -- the so-called official places -- where people who are largely
providers could come to give us that kind of information. We planned
to spend the evening portions of our hearings visiting programs like
Leaven House.

I appreciate the attendance and participation of everyone
here.

MR. TALBERT: I am only disappointed tnat we didn't even know

you people were in town. We hadn't heard about it.
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MS. HUNTER: I didn't know until this afternoon.

MR. TALBERT: I live out in Centerfield. This is North
Camden. Half of the meetings I hear about which go on-- We don't have
anyone out there who deals with the question. We will have a whole lot
of people out in our neighborhood next month because I think there is
an election coming up.

MS. HUNTER: Yes, there is.

MR. TALBERT: There is an election coming up in May. Last
year I worked on the election. When the summer came in, I know one man
who came over from Philly with a list of jobbers. He stopped me when 1
was coming out of the Center. I said, "Do you have any jobs?" He
said, "Yes." Then he told me, "I went to Camden High; I went to
H. B. Wilson." He said he was supposed to get kids who were in school
jobs for the summer. He said, "I never got a chance to talk to any of
the kids. All the teachers did was bring one of their children to sign
up for a job."

MS. HUNTER: That's right.

MR. TALBERT: They wanted their children to get the jobs. 1
worked all summer-- I just want to show you something. Do you know
what kind of a job he was going to give me? 1 have a wife and five
kids. 0Okay? 1 work every day out there for nothing. Vo you know-what
he wanted to give me? A minimum wage job. Here's college kids coming
in, and they are going to give them at least a 3%5.0U-and-something
job. I'm a grown man; I am going to be here for the rest of my life.
He wants to give me a $3.U0-and-something job, and give some kid who
belongs to someone else a $5.00 job.

I tell everyone in my neighborhood, "Von't vote for shit."
That hurts me.

FATHER CALVO: I think it would be very good for you people
to go around the town a little bit.

MR. TALBERT: Yes.

FATHER CALVO: You could spend a half an hour and just move
around a couple of blocks here. I think you would understand the
situation much better than you do just sitting here. A Z2Zu-minute or
a half-hour walk around here in North Camden, and you would see what

the situation is.
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MR. FORD: Thank you, Father.
MS. ROSS: Thank you. I think we have to end the hearing

now. Thank you, everyone.
MS. HUNTER: Thank you.

(END OF EVENING SESSION)
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NEWS FOR THE FRIENDS OF THE GOOD SAMARITAN CENTER

A WORD OF THANKS TO OUR
FRIENDS AND SUPPORTERS

1964 was anothen busy yearn {4or the Good Samaritan Center!
We served more people 4in mone ways in 1984 than ever be-
fore. We wirh Lt werne othewwdise. We wish we could repoit ¢
decnease An services, because that would be an
that things ane gexting bettenr.

We haven't gdiven up on our dream that someday,a place £4ike
the Good Samaritan Center won'zt be needed becausre akf pecple
will have decent housding, sufficient empLoyment, enough Zo
Live on. We, as Martin Luthen King Jn. once sadd, have "the
audacity to beldeve that someday, peopfe everywhere car have
three meals a day." We are wornking toward that day, and we
stand neady to help those An need untif that day arriver.

AT R
ANGATE LA

04 course, none of what we do would be possible L§ Lt were
not forn the generous help, support,and encouwragement of vir-
tuakly thowsands of caning and sharing people. Becawte oux
many friends have come through forn wus with Lying colons,
we owe them a detailfed accounting of what we did with zhe
gidts of food, clothdng, and money. That's what thir nezic:
Lengthy annual nreport 44 all about.

We also owe them a bdg Thank You! We trny to nrespord  Zc
all donations Andividually, but serving strugaldng pecpfc
b cur gt prlordty.  We may  have missed some of you, avd

A we abk that you will accept this pre-printed, nather Ar-
personal Letten as a sdign of our deep appreclatdo.
Te everyone who helped 4in 1984 in whateven way, Zc¢ donoh:

and vclurteens, to oun stafg and oun Board memberns: Thawnk:!

W O‘%ag \f) : {32 {a,cf:

Wolggarg D. Henz-Llanc, M.S.U.
Executdive Dinccton
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1984: MORE FOOD FOR MORE PEOPLE
NUMBER OF MEALS INCREASES BY 25%

In 1984, the Good Samaritan Center's
food services grew once again: 126,212
meals were given to 10,474 hungry persons
in 3,974 families. The total value of the
food was $65,630.24. (Table 1 shows our
emergency food services month by month.)

Compared to the previous year,the center
increased the number of meals by more than
25%. As Table 2 shows, the number of per-
sons referred to us for emergency food
grew by some 2507 since 1981. The Good Sa-
maritan Center continues to be the largest
emergency food provider in Camden.

Except for special cases, a referral is
required before a person may receive food.
Most referrals come from the Camden County
Board of Social Services, which acts as a
central referral agency and ‘''clearing
house' for most emergency food providers
in the city. We also accept referrals from
other agencies, churches, and pastors.

Each individual receives a four-day
supply of food, or 12 meals at an average
cost of 52¢ per meal.

More food to many more people --- where
does it all come from? Our largest single
source of food are in-kind donations, i.e.

canned and dried goods collected by
10.474
9.544
7.399
4,373
! 1821 198 1885 168~

TABLE 2: NUMBER OF PERSONS
RECEIVING FOOD, 1981 - 1984

MonTH FamiLies [nDivibpuats NuMBER $ VALUE oOF
SERVED SERVED Or MeaLs Foop
JAN 237 639 7.678 3.992.56
Fes 239 603 7.186 3,736.72
Mar 244 548 6.576 3.419.52
ApR 332 759 8,108 4,736.1¢6
May 303 836 10.088 5,246.28
Jun 276 791 8,492 4,935, 84
Jul 176 507 6,584 3,423.68
Aue 377 971 11,652 6.059.04
Sep 354 881 10.572 5,497 .44
OcT 383 1.083 12.996 6.757.92
Nov 597 1.810 21,720 11,294,40
Dec 456 1.046 12.559 6.530,68
ToTaL 3,974 10,474 126.212 65,630, 24

TABLE 1: FOOD SERVICES BY MONTH, 1984

churches and groups or donated by indivi-
duals. This category also includes food
from the Greater Philadelphia Food Bank
and surplus commodities from the Depart-
ment of Agriculture. In just one yeer, the
value of in-kind donations doublec frc:
$20,000 in 1983 to $39,719.19.

In addition,$25,911.05 worth of food wes
bought by us using funds granted by founc-
ations, companies, groups, individuals
and the Federal government through the
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
Many of these funds (including FEMA) came
through the Camden FEED Consortium  (Food
for Equitable Emergency Distribution), cf
which the Good Samaritan Center is a mem-
ber agency. We also belong to the Camden-
based Religious Coalition for Food which
also contributed funds.

(Table 3 identifies
we counted on in 1984.)

(Continued on page “,

the sources of fooz

WHERE DOES GOOD SAMARITAKN CENTER'S FOOD CO¥E FROM!

1. Gannett Foundation, Rochester, NY § 3,950.0¢
2. Generel Electric Co., Fniladelphie Lo
3. Wo. Fenn Foundation, Phile. (thru FZED? Z2,59-.0.
4, Glernmede Trustz, Phila. (thru FEED Consortium)  2,366.00
5. Religicus Coslition for Food, Camcen 1,000.¢
6. Lutheran Brotherhood/Luth. Socizl Services 56882
7. Federzl Emergency Managemert Agency (FEM:) 11,0770
€. Individual donztions/generel bulge:r funcs IT0
Total funds spent te buy food 25,611.02
Value of foro irn-king donztions 36,7
TOTAL VALUE OF FOOZ PROVIDED IN 1954 €5, 0

TABLE 3: SOURCES OF FOOD, 1984



MORE FOOD ...

(Continued from page 2)

"Good Sam'' also participated ° in the
distribution of government surplus com-
modities. In coalition with the Camden
County Board of Social Services, Hispanic
Health and Mental Health, the YMCA, and
Family Counseling Services, we distributed
free cheese on March 15, dried milk on
August 2,and butter on November 29. Thous-
ands of families were served at a central
downtown site (the YMCA), which the Good
Samaritan Center had helped to develop.

Special food baskets, including 793 tur-
keys and chickens, were given out for
Thanksgiving and Christmas, 1984.(In 1983,
we provided 550 pieces of poultry.) These
special donations came from many indivi-
dual friends, from the FEED Consortium,
from First Presbyterian Church and Our Sa-
vior Lutheran Church, both in Haddonfield,

from Mr. Al Matthews of Magnolia and from
the Camden Lutheran Parish. Fifteen food
baskets were donated by George Favorite

and his friends at
Church in Moorestown.
A special pilot project,designed to pro-
vide food over longer periods of time, was
coordinated by the Americen Red Cross and
funded by the William Penn Foundaticn via
the FEED Consortium in the summer of 1985,
The Good Samaritan Center, one of severzl
participating agencies, provided $ 1,118
in food vecuchers to 59 perscns in 12 fam-
ilies. The vouchers were good for food
purchases at a store of the family's
cheice. ’

Trinity Episcopal

TOY & GIFT SHOP
BRINGS CHRISTMAS
CHEER TO MANY

For the third time, the Good Samaritan
Center organized a Christmas Toy & Gift
Shop on December 18 and 19 at St. Paul's
Episcopal Church on Market Street in Cam-
den. Parents were invited to come and pick
out presents for their children free of
charge.

Coordinated by Katrina Pearthree, social
work student placed at the center for her
internship, the toy store provided 1,641
items to 547 children in 176 families. (We
counted 810 items the year before) Most of
the toys had been donated by two dozen
churches and groups. We also received $400
to buy toys from the '"Toys for Tots' pro-
gram.

In addition to donating toys and gifts,
our friends and supporters also helped o
set up and run the shop. Not counting the
center's regular staff, 24 wvolunteers
spent 110 hours making sure that Christmas
was just a bit brighter for many strugg-
ling families.

3




8,307 CUSTOMERS

CAME TO US FOR CLOTHING
... AND NONE LEFT EMPTY-HANDED

8,307 persons (exactly 100 more than the
year before) came to the Good Samaritan

Center in 1984 to receive free clothing
items. Each customer wusually receives
items for other family members; since the

median family size in Camden is 2.98 ac-
cording to the 1980 Census, we estimate
that 24,753 persons benefitted from our
clothing program. Table 4 shows our cloth-
ing services in 1984 month by month.

Over the past years, the number of cus-
tomers for clothing has remained more or
less constant, as shown in Table 5.

All clothing we give out is donated to
us in-kind, either through collections by
churches and groups or by individuals. The
value of the items goes into the hundreds
of thousands of dollars.

1984 saw & dramatic increase 1in the
need for baby clothing. Ellen Keck and her
friends at Our Savior lutheran Church,
Haddonfield, made up 39 layettes (twice as
many as the year before), a project that
also involved the women of Christus Luth-
eran Church in Camden.Because of the grow-

8.307
8.207

1865

1667

1981

TABLE 5: NUMBER OF FAMILIES
RECEIVING CLOTHING, 1981 - 1984

24 V

Month  # OF Customers [EsTIMATED # OF
For CLOTHING ERSONS CLOTHED

JaN 461 1,374

Fes 591 1.761 :
Mar 746 2,223

APR 665 1,982

May 748 2,229

Jun 658 1.961

Jut 528 1,576

Auc 761 2,267

Sep 588 2.050

Oct 1,125 3,352

Nov 649 1,934

Dec 686 2,04y

Totar 8,307 24,753

TABLE 4: CLOTHING SERVICES
BY MONTH, 1984

ing needs, the Good Samaritan Center ic
expanding its services for new mothers bv
adding a project called "A Baby's Closet,"
which will provide clothing, pampers, re-
ceiving blankets, formula, and the like.

Our Christmas Shoe Fund provided 35 shoe
certificates in 1984, redeemable at a Car--
den shoe store. Board member Naomi Cress-
man of St. Mary's Episcopal Church, Haddon
Heights, collected $285 for the fund from
her church and fellow teachers at Forrest
Hill Elementary School, Camden.

Bert Hovey of Temple Lutheran Church in
Pennsauken, a longtime supporter and Boarc
member, retired from his volunteer job &
the center's ''quicker-picker-upper.' COur
heartfelt thanks go to Mr. Hovey for th.
many hours ‘spent picking up donations. Tn
center's '"'two Gusses,' (Gus Winder and Gur
Frankenz,both of First Presbyterian Chuvo.
in Haddonfield), also deserve & big 'Tua
you'" for their help with pick-ups.

Thanks to & grant from the Lutheren -
cial Services of New Jersey (LSSNI),
were able to rent a van owned by tho
den Lutheren Ferish and to hive &
time driver, Anthonv Davis. Tonv heas oo
on staff since September,and he has crive
1,528 miles and accomplished 145 pick-ur.
during the first four months R

Cg::
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Feed the hungry,clothe the naked,
open your homes to the homeless poor.
Remove the chains of oppression

end the yoke of injustice,

and let the oppressed go free.

(Isajiah S58:6)

" ... TODO
WHAT IS JUST"

The Lord has told us what is gooc.
Whet he requires of us is this: to
do what is just, to show constant
leve, and to live in humble fellow-
ship with our God.

(Micah 6:8)

The mandate by the prophets is important to us at the Good Samaritan Center. While

feeding hungry people is
vices are but a band-aid,

crucial, we are painfully aware every day that
a temporary relief from the symptons of a larger problem

our ser-

At the same time, caring and sharing people must begin to address root causes, so

people wouldn't be hungry in the first place.

The prophets in scripture talk about

mercy and justice; in modern-day social work jargon, we refer to it as ''direct ser-
vices" (feeding and clothing the poor) and 'advocacy," that is, being advocates with
and on behalf of poor and working people in the struggle for social change.

Advocacy, of course, begins in one's own
back yard. The Good Samaritan Center does
not see itself as part of a bureaucratic
and impersonal 'social welfare system.'' We
were founded on Christian principles, and
we strive to preserve and affirm the dig-
nity of the people coming to us for help.

In the fall of 1983, the Board of Trus-
tees affirmed the center's commitment to
advocacy, saying that our Board, our staff
and the volunteers should reflect the
make-up of the city. We've come a long way
since then: With the Board members nomin-
ated for electici. in 1985, eight of the 1€
trustees will be city residents, reaching
the goal of a balance between city resi-
dents and residents of suburban corrmni-
ties set in 1983. The number of city resi-

dents on the Board has increased by al-
most 300%, from three in 1981 to eight in
1985. Seven of our 16 Board members will

be people of color or a primary language
other than English, as compared to two in
1981.

Advocacy also strives for the empower-
ment of the powerless and the disenfran-
chised. In 1984, a non-partisan voter reg-
istration drive signed up hundreds of new
voters, a project sponsored by the Camden
County Voter Registration Network.The net-

work, among other agencies, included the
League of Women Voters, the A. Philip Ran-
dolph Institute, Planned Parenthood, and
the Good Samaritan Center.

Our advocacy activities in 1984 focused
on issues of homelessness. As part of the
Camden Shelter Coalition, the Good Samari-
tan Center helped to get additional emer-
gency shelters for Camden's growing home-
less population. .

On July 27, 1984, the city of Camden re-
opened a commnity center at 6th and Erie
Streets in North Camden, providing shelter
for up to 100 persons. The city has pro-
mised to provide shelter  throughout the
winter of 1984/85.

The Camden County Board of Chosen Free-
holders voted on Dec.27 to open the former
Jefferson House at the county Lakeland
complex as an additional shelter, and to
allocate § 65,000 to the Volunteers of
America (VoA) to run that facility. 30 men
and 30 women can find a roof over their
heads at Lakeland.

Both the city's “nvolvement and the com-
mitment by the county are direct results
of the Shelter Coalition's work.

On the national level, the Good Samari-
tan Center sponsored a trip to Washington,

PLEASE SEE PAGE 7

TWO HCOMELESS FER-
SONS  FROM CAMDEA
TESTIFIED JAN.
BEFCORE A
COMMITTEE OF
BANKING COMMITT
OF THE U.S.HCLS
OF REFRESINTA-
TIVES.  THE GCOCT
SAMARTTAN  CENTER
SPONSORED T+HE
TRIP T0 WASHTNG-
TON, D.C.
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1984 saw many changes on the staff of
the Good Samaritan Center. In October, we
honored Edith Andrews of Lawnside who, af-
ter &4 years of faithful service, retired
from her part-time receptionist position.
A grant from the Camden County Board of
Chosen Freeholders, using money allocated
by the state for services to the homeless,
made it possible for us to expand Edith's
job into a 25-hours-per-week position and
to hire José Sanchez of Camden as a bilin-
gual intake worker/receptionist.

Another valuable addition to our staff
had happened in August: Katrina Pearthree,
an undergraduate social work student at
Rutgers University in Camden, was placed
at '"Good Sam" for a two-semester intern-
ship that is part of her education.

During the summer of 1984, four Camden
high school students worked at the center
during a Summer Youth Employment Program.
They were: Jean Davis, Dennis Day, Marc
Gordon, and Julio Quinones. This  special
1984 project was made possible by
grants from Trinity Lutheran Church, Camp
Hill, Pa.; the Urban Concerns Committee of
the New Jersey Synod / Lutheran Church in
America (LCA);the LCA's Division of Prof-
essional leadership in Philadelphia; and
the Haddonfield Council of Churches.

Volunteers Are
The Backbone

W

WOLFGANG D. HERZ-LANE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CLAUDIA A. YOUNG
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR

KATRINA PEARTHREE
SOCIAL WORK INTERN

JOSE SANCHEZ
RECEPTIONIST

ANTHONY DAVIS
DRIVER

CITY VOLUNTEERS:LUIS ARES.EMILY BER-™
RY, CHARLES COLVIN, ANDREATTA HERN-
ANDEZ., RUBY MILLER., PRESTON POSLEY,
THOMAS SCOTT.JANE SWINDELL,ALICE TA-
TUM, JERRY TYSON,

VOLUNTEERS FROM FIRST PRESBYTERIAN
CHURCH, HADDONFIELD: CATHERINE THOM,
COCRDINATOR. MAE AIRLIE,BETTY GAUNT.
CLAIRE MARTIN, CAROL REISNER. VIR~
GINIA RITCHIE, MARY SCUDDER., SUE
SMITH AND CLAIRE WIMER,

FROM CHERRY HILL UNITARIAN CHURCH:
RUTH HERRMANN

THE STAFF OF THE
GOOD SAMARITAN CENTER

Two students hired for a summer prograw.
by Respond Inc., Camden (Wendell DMorger
and Simone Smitherman) were placed at the
Good Samaritan Center

Volunteers continue to be the backbone
of the center's work. At any given timc,
the center can count on 10 to 15 wvol-
unteers from the city. In addition,members
of the women's group at First Presbvter1""
Church in Haddonfield help out on & regul-
ar basis, and Ruth Herrmarnn of the Cherry
Hill Unitarian Church volunteers

KEEPING IN TOUCH: VISITS, TOURS AND OUTREACH

Feb. 7: Director of Good Samaritan Center speaks at women's group luncheon, First Presbyterian Church, Haddonfield

Feb.10; Visit to "Good Sam'' and Camden by representatives of Lutheran Council in the USA (LCUSA), New York; Lutheran Resources
Commission, Washington, D.C.; and Wheat Ridge Foundation, Chicage

Feb.11l: Girl Scouts of St. Joan of Arc Roman Catholic Church, Marlton, visit the center

Feb.15: Director speaks before social work class at Rutgers University Camden, on homelessness

Feb.16: News Bureau of LCUSA-New York visits Good Samaritan Center

Feb.17: Director speaks at meeting of Haddon Fortnightly, Haddonfield

Feb.26: Tenth Annual Meeting of Good Samaritan Center at Epiphany Lutheran Church, Camden

Mar. 2: Members of the South Jersey Campaign for a Nuclesr Weapons Freeze visit the center

Mar.16: Director speaks at dinner of Collingswood Presbyteriar Church

Mar.25: Director visits with Sunday School class at St. Matthew Lutheran Church, Moorestown

Apr. 7: Michael Davis and Brenda Cherry are married in a ceremony held at the Good Samaritan Center; open house follows

Apr.13: Social work students from Vermont visit "Good Sam;'' members of Philadelphia and Haddonfield Friends Meetings

tour the center

May 1: Director is guest speaker at Women's Missionary Society of Fairview Baptist Church, Canden

May 17: Good Samaritan Center display at annual convention of New Jersey Synod-Lutheran Church in America, in Ocean City
May 18: Display on the center at statewide convention of Lutheran Women Missionary league of Lutheran Church-Missouri Synoc
Jun. 2: "Human Chain' across Ben Franklin Bridge sponsored by 50 churches, agencies and commanity groups; food items donzted

at the event are given to Good Samaritan Center

Jun. 9: Tenth Anniversary Dinner at St. Matthew Lutheran Church, Moorestown

Jul.10: Youth Group of Redeemer Lutheran Church, Vineland, tours the center

Aug. 8: Director is guest speaker at weekly staff worship of Volunteers of America (VoaA), Camder
Sep. 9: Anniversary service at St. Paul's Episcopal Church, Camden

Sep.12: Director speaks at women's meeting of Holy Trinity Lutheran Church, Maple Shade

Sep.16: Director delivers sermon on ''Good Sam'' and hunger at State Street Methodist Church, Camden
Sep.27: "Good Sar'' display at state-wide convention of fmerican Baptist Churches (ABC)

Sep.30: Director is guest speaker at Covenant Presbyterian Church,
Oct. 9: Director visits with women's group at Collingswood Prestyterian Church
Oct.16: World Food Day. Director speaks at St. Stephen's lLutheran Church, Woodbury.
Ocr.l7: Directer participates as workshop leader in a state-wide workshop
Oct.18: Representatives of Community Planning and Advocacy Council/Human Services Coazliticrn (CPA
Oct.19: Director attends dinner for North Camden-area ministers at Holy hawe Romen Catholic Church, Car
Oct.19: Director joins a panel on Camden for representatives of Action Reconci
Oct.24: Director is guest speaker at Cherry Hill Lions Club, meeting at the Woodci
Oct.25: Director speaks at cluster meeting of American Baptist churches at First baptist Church, Coliingswood
Oct.25: Socizl work students from Vermont tour the bOCh Samari
Oct.z8: Directer delivers sermon on world end domestic hunger at Crace Lutheran Church, Cande

Cinne.inson

ten Center

for Lutheran pestors et Princeton Theotlicgicel Seminar,

© the cenzer

}

ion, Wwest Beriin (Goermeny
ie Inn, Pennseaure:.

Nev. 3: Director leads workshop at state-wide Global Missicn Event of New Jersey Sinod- Lu:ne“aw Church in Arerice in Heightstoa
Nov. 70 Good Samaritan Center Luncheon at Our Savior Lutheran Church, Haddcnfield
¥ov.18: Youth Group of Unitarian Church, Cherry Hill, tours the center
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To Do What Is Just

CONTINUED FROM PAGE 5

D.C. on January 25, 1984, by two homeless
persons from Camden. They testified before
a subcommittee of the House Banking Com-
mittee. The hearing was held at the na-
tion's largest emergency shelter, a 1,000-
bed facility run by the Commnity for Cre-
ative Non-Violence (CCNV).

Emergency shelter for the homeless, much
like food assistance to the hungry, 1is a
""band-aid approach,'’ necessary as a short-
term solution. It is not the final answer

Therefore, the Shelter Coalition has ad-
vocated renovation and re-occupation of
some 500 vacant units in the city's nine
public housing projects that the Camden
Housing Authority is responsible for. The
authority's vacancy rate is 227 while hun-
dreds of families are waiting for decent
housing.

Despite numerous meetings with Camden
Mayor Melvin R. Primas, Housing Authority
Director Joseph Herd,and the commissioners
of the authority, no comprehensive plan
has been worked out. In July, 1984, the
commissioners refused to even consider a

to homelessness - - - safe and decent per- financing plan that had been prepared by
manent housing is. the Shelter Coalition.
WHERE OUR MONEY 5. Foundations And Coalitions 19,416.20
Religious Coalition for Food, Camden 1,000.00
William Penn Foundation,Phila. (thru FEED)  2,394.00
COMES FROM AND Glenmede Trust, Phila.(thru FEED Consortium) 2,366.00
een Federal Emerg. Managemt. Agency (thru FEED} 500.00
Gannett Foundation, Rochester, NY 6,159.20
WHAT WE DO WITH IT Public Welfare Foundation, Washington,DC 6,500.00
Kenelm Foundation, Collingswood 500.00
1. OPENING BALANCE AS OF 1/1/84 7,00:.67 6. Other Income 1,154.77
Interest 628.97
II. SOURCES OF FUNDS Other income/Refunds 525.80
1. Corporate Donations 2,576.C0 7. Vouchers For Food Purchases 11, 036.72
Btokers Morr_gage Service, W. Collingswood 235.00 Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
""Toys for Tots" Progran (Chn.smr.s tove) 400.00 through Camden FEED Conscrtium 11,03¢.72
Getty 0il Co., Cherry Hill 100.00
General Electrlc Co., Philadelphia 1,16C.00 TOTAL INCOME JANUARY 1 THROUGH DECEMBER 31 74,360,590
18 donations under 5100 681.00
2. Individual Donations 10,8481 I11. USES OF FUNDS
gn.;maldMembgrship Drive 3,150.00 1. Staffing 26,1%5.53
T & T !
er donations 7,79+ 8 Salaries for four part-time staff 24,868,728
3. Congregations And Congregational Groups 14,491.00 Personnel Expense 1,625.05
ti /bus r i
Our Savior Lutheran, Haddonfield 99700 Transportation/bus fare for volunteers 1,542.20
First Presbyterian, Haddonfield 3,757.00 2. Building Anc Ecuiprent 6,935.37
Fairview Community Beptist, Camden 283.00 Heat 1,425.11
St. Matthew Lutheran, Moorestown 2,283.00 Electricity *941. 29
Bethany Lutheran, Glguces:er 122.00 Water and Sewer 310‘6’
g«z;hany Luth?ran, Palmyra 100.00 Mzintenance and renovations 2,527.29
rince of Pezce Lutheran, Marlton 275.00 Weekly Cleaning Service *548.20
Search for God Study Group, Maple Shade 135.00 Tneorance e 827,22
ARE Study Group 135.00 Van Rente 555 ¢
First Presbyterian, Merchantville 225.00 : - i
Grace Episcopal, Merchantville 270,00 3. Administration And Office 3,842.81
Trinity Episcepzal, Mocrestown L5.07 SEiae sunclies and CEs
Luther P’emcriax}, Blackwood gﬁ;;‘oi;”heb &nc postage 1’;;2;
gg :migelhit}l\,utherag,k?\erry Rill Publicity/mewsletter 1 357.12
. Mark's eran, Ozklyn . TS
Logan Memorial Presbyterizn, Aucubon Corporate Expense and misc. 380.12
Calvary Baptist, Pennsauker 4. Programs 28,854 3¢
First Presbyterian, Barrington Food purchases /czsh prants 1487437
First Presbyterian, Collingswood Fo;c g;;cgeseé/;";‘:’; st;:c}:é s IJ,O‘I"':.;““
::doo§ef:&mhFr1ends Meeting Infant clothing ;rdje:t : ’ 570:’
amder. Lutherar Pa Surmer prograr contribution 750.0C

St. Paul's Presbyt Laurel Springs
Trinity Luthe*ar Cap }‘;1, Pe.

Mt. Oi’ve' Beprict, hcdm"ﬂeld

St. Mery' Ep_-norl (incl. shoe fund)
Don;:ions u*;:‘cr $10G3 by 1) other churches

4. Churches And Church-Releted Agencies

Lutheren B*ctke*hcﬁ Frate"wcl Insqran:e

P*J.nce on Tnewcgcdl 5
Lutheren C*.arc* !
Feirview
Americen Baptist Churches
Council of Churches, 3
Mocrestown CRCF Wzlk

Christmzs shoe fund

Christmes Toy & Gift Shop/tey perchases LG
Sumer Youth Enployment Progran 1,060.07
TOTAL EDPENSIS JANUARY 1 THROUGH DECEMBER 31 67,7670

Totzl Aveilatle
Total 198~ Cach

Expenses

FE. Vcucher Expernses for Food

13,574.13

Closing Balance as of 12/31/84

7%




KEEPING OUR BUILDING IN SHAPE

Keeping our building at 325 Market St.in
shape is an on-going task. In 1984,we were
-able to make many improvements.

Thanks to a special $500 grant from the
Federal Emergency Management Agency, FEMA,
received through the FEED Consortium, we
were able to build a new and larger food
room on the first floor. Our receiving
department, where all incoming clothing is
sorted by volunteers, moved into larger
quarters as well, on the second floor. Our
"0ld" food room was transformed into a
meeting lounge for counseling sessions and
committee meetings.

Gus Winder, the center's treasurer, de-
serves a special thank you for the many
hours spent fixing and repairing. Among

other projects throughout the year, Gus
singlehandedly put in a fire alarm system,
fire extinguishers, and safety ladders.

Bob Gift and Menton Kohl, members of St.
Matthew Lutheran Church in Moorestown,con-
tinued to volunteer one day a week to do
maintenance work. Their biggest job in
1984 was a new floor for the second floor
bathroom. Thank you,Bob and Menton!

The Youth Employment Service (Y.E.S.),a
youth project sponsored by the Camden
Lutheran Parish, provided weekly cleaning
services, mopping and waxing floors,clean-
ing the building, etc. Y.E.S. members, all
of whom are junior high or high school
students from Camden, run their own com-
pany and receive minimm wage.

11TH ANNUAL MEETING

OF THE GOOD SAMARITAN CENTER
ON SUNDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 1985 AT 2 P.M.
AT EPIPHANY LUTHERAN CHURCH,
7TH AND MARKET STREETS, CAMDEN

. .| EPIPHANY
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ALL ARE INVITED! FREE PARKING IS AVAILABLE ON THE LOT AT MARKET STREET
AND HADDON AVE. REFRESHMENTS WILL BE SERVED.
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Testimonias

"After moving here, we found ourselves in an embar-
rassing situation—no job, no money, no food or place
to stay. Then someone took us to the People That Love
Center. There we met the greatest people in the world.
They helped us, prayed with us and referred us. There
should be a center in every town so those in need
have a place to get help and to learn to love one an-
other and the Lord like we have.” C.S., Gadsden, AL

“Recently | was burned out and lost nearly everything. |
went to agency after agency but no one would help.
Then at the grocery store one day someone said to go
to the Love Center for help. | went and they gave me
food, clothes, bedding and furniture. PTL is wonderful
to help when others can’t or won't.”

R.F., Charlotte, NC

"Five weeks ago | was at the bottom of my life. Then
someone gave me the address of the Love Center. |
was so low | had made up my mind to take my life.
After visiting the Love Center, | attended church the
next Sunday and feit like | had come home. | have been
freed from the desire to take my life. | received Jesus
back into my life—my life has completely changed. This
ministry has saved my life. | would not be alive today

unless they had helped.” J.M., Portsmouth, NH

“The People That Love Center was my last thread of
hope. | had wandered aimlessly and lost for many
years and was ready to give up. The ‘People That Love’
have helped me make a whole new start in life. They
heiped me with food, and nice clothes to wear for a

Jjob interview; they helped arrange some temporary
housing. Now I've got a job, a place of my own, and
most of all, friends to care and share.”

R.C., Rock HIll, SC

“Thank you so much for your organization that helped
me in my time of need. | can really see the family of
God in action through it. As | get back on my feet it is
my hope that | can become a person devoted to help-
ing the poor and needy." H.T., s"‘yrna’ DE

"‘God is really blessing our center. People are seeing that
we aren’t just saying we love, but are seeing it in

ACTION." Plattsburgh, NY

\}

You Caq v Count On Us

Love is more than something we say, it is what we
do—loving folks right where they are. It is providing
clothes, groceries, and furniture to needy families; be-
ing that caring, listening ear, offering prayerful encour-
agement, letting people know where jobs and other
helps are available.

We are your neighbors and we care for you. If you
have an emergency need, let us know. We can help
with food, clothing, household items, job and commu-
nity resources referrals, or just a listening ear and prayer-
ful encouragement. Contact us at:

We’ll be here. You can count on usl

Your People That Love Center Is the place In
your community where caring folks are reaching
out to others in need. \Won’t you help with your
time and/or donations? You can count on us. Can
we count on you?

Wil Dy crmn
7532- 744/

T Heritage Village Church & Missionary Fellowship., Inc
Q D ® Charlotte, North Carolina 28279

Peopic
That Love
Cenf@m




Sem e S e o

4
3
+

o
Vhat Is A P=ople
That Love Center?

People That Love Centers exist throughout Amer-
ica and in several other countries for the purpose of
helping needy. hurting, destitute people make it with
God'’s help and the loving assistance of His people.

The Centers accomplish this by freely providing
emergency food supplies, clothing and furniture, and
offering spiritual counsel, prayer and encouragement.

Other services of a People That Love Center may
include helping people with job information, money
management help, and community service referrals.

President
Reagan Has
Recognized
People That
Love Centers,
declaring...

"The PTL Television Network is carrying out a
master plan for ‘People That Love,” opening centers all
across the country to provide food, clothing, furniture
and job bank centers at no cost.”

\X/bat Are
Peop'~ That L.ove
Centers Doinqg?

Following the vision given to Jim Bakker and PTL,
over 725 People That Love Centers are now reaching
out in love, extending a helping hand and heart of love
to needy people in small communities anc! large
cities alike.

a

Caring volunteers heip meet the phys-
ical needs of those who visit People
That Love Centers, also offering pray-
erful encouragement. Emergency
clothing, food and househoid items
are avallable at no cost, provided by
many ‘‘People That Love.”

Dedicated volunteers become PTL's “‘arms and
legs” in every corner of America, giving food, clothir
and household items. Many centers are able to provi
help with job information, community services referr
and basic money management. Every center offers
God's love, expressed through His people, and the
prayerful encouragement that says to the hurting, ‘"
Can Make Itl”

The real story of People That Love Centers is tol
in the testimonies of just a few of the thousands wh
have been helped: (see opposite side of this fi



What

Where

When

¥hy

Expenses

a)
b)
c)
d)

e)

£)

Dubmited by Aihn Sca

CATHEDRAL KITCHEN

FEEDING PROGRAM

Cathedral Conference - St. Vincent de Paul Society

23 Church groups - 500 casseroles per month
40 volunteer servers; one paid chef
Campbell Soup Co. - soup donations

Bread Basket |

Pitman Bakerng Bread donations

Tea and sugar - donated

Evening meals - 2300 people served per month

Cathedral of the Immaculate Conception, Camden, N. J.

Weekday evenings: 6:00 - 6:45 p.m.

a)
b)

Provide meals to those who need them - no questions asked

Act as a vehicle for Christian Witness

Paper Supplies
Salary $ 1000. per month
Dumpster fee

Approximate Meal Cost - 50 cents per meal

/8X











